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" Inaworld of constant ehange, individuals, institutions, markets " -

“ _and societies rely on The McGraw-Hill Companies to help move
them forward. -

Our ability to see, understand and anticipate change underlies
our commitment to bring value to our customers and make
a positive impact.

It is also the essential element in the continuing success and

~ constant focus of The McGraw-Hill Companies in building value
- for our shareholders today and tOMOrrow. | o
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CONSTANT PERFORMANCE

HAROLD McGRAW 11l Chairman, President and CEO

“In 2003, as they have for generations, our customers turned to
the talented and dedicated men and women of The McGraw-Hill
Companies for the insight and analysis they need to move ahead
during times of uncertainty and change.”




TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS:

Through booms and busts and rebirths, through the promise of peace and the threat of
terrorism and war, through the endless changes that transform nations, institutions and people,
the mission and commitment of The McGraw-Hill Companies stand constant.

Our mission is to provide essential information and insight that help individuals, markets and
societies perform to their potential. It is the strength of this mission and the depth of our commitment
that allow us to perform, year after year, to the benefit of our customers and shareholders.

In the face of war in Iraq, persistent geopolitical tension and a challenging economic environment
in the United States, we continued to make a positive impact for customers, and our balanced
portfolio of businesses performed solidly, as it has for the past decade.

Constant change also means opportunity. And in the large and dynamic markets we serve, the
depth and pace of change have never been greater.

] Securitization, privatization and disintermediation are reshaping the world’s financial markets as
the need for capital continues to grow;

[ Sweeping changes in education — from the use of technology to a sharper focus on results —
are transforming learning and teaching at all levels to meet the need for knowledge and bring
opportunity to all; and

I Aglobal market thatis increasingly interdependent is driving demand for objective, reliable business
news and analysis that meets the need for information transparency to improve decision-making.

Our businesses are aligned to meet these growing global needs and to anticipate and adapt to
changing conditions.

In financial services, Standard & Poor’s enjoys a preeminent position in the world’s financial
architecture as the leading provider of independent analysis and information on the debt and
equity markets. Qur ongoing commitment to improving transparency facilitates the global
capitalformation process.

McGraw-Hill Education is a leading provider of educational materials to primary and secondary
schools in the U.S. and continues to grow in higher education, where we are also a leader. While
there are different methods to improve learning and teaching, the demand for improvement and
accountability in education is widespread and provides exciting opportunities.

BusinessWeek is the world’s best-selling business magazine; our energy, aviation and construction
information businesses are major forces in their markets; and our broadcast outlets are an essential
fabric in the communities they serve.




Our ability to leverage our leadership positions to drive and capitalize on change, together with
the steadiness of our vision in a dynamic business environment, has produced a consistent track
record of growth that continued in 2003.

[ Netincome rose by 19.2% to $687.7 million.
[ Operating margins reached 23%.
[ Revenue rose to an all-time high of $4.83 billion.

For the year, total return to shareholders increased 17.7%. Our annualized compounded total
return to shareholders has increased by an average of 17.9% annually over the last 10 years,
exceeding the 11.1% annualized return of the S&P 500 and the 14.6% gain of our proxy peer group.

Our record of growth also includes consistent increases in dividend payments and our ongoing
share-repurchase program, which highlight our commitment to total shareholder value.

In January 2004, our Board of Directors approved the 31st consecutive annual increase in
The McGraw-Hill Companies’ stock dividend. The new rate of $1.20 per share, an increase of 11.1%,
represents a compounded annual dividend growth rate of 10.4% since 1974. And for 2004, we've
expanded our share-repurchase program. The combination of dividends paid and share repurchases
has returned a total of $2.5 billion to shareholders over the last eight years.

CHANGING PROSPECTS, CONSTANT FOCUS

We remain keenly focused on using our strengths to capitalize on the significant growth
opportunities that exist in each of our markets.

[ Standard & Poor’s ability to anticipate and address the changes transforming the financial
markets continues to drive its growth, while also enabling it to diversify its revenue base by
developing new products and services for new customers in new regions.

One of the most significant of these changes is the growing focus on credit risk. Securitization,
which allows institutions to use their assets more efficiently, has become standard practice in the U.S.
It has also grown substantially in Europe and parts of Asia. As a result, international markets now
account for more than one-third of our ratings revenue, with the potential to climb even higher.
And the greater focus on credit risk also continues to fuel the development of nontraditional ratings
and services, such as Bank Loan Ratings and Counterparty Credit Ratings, which today represent
more than 20% of total ratings revenue.

Standard & Poor’s indexes continue to grow, as increases in the range and type of investment
vehicles carrying our brand demonstrate the changing appetite of investors for index-based
investments. Assets under management for Exchange-Traded Funds (ETFs) linked to
S&P’s indexes rose to $79.8 billion in 2003, up 26%. Half of all U.S.-equity ETFs
are based on S&P indexes.




In the equity markets, profound changes are reshaping the way financial institutions
provide research to their customers. As the largest independent equity research firm in the world,
Standard & Poor’s is ideally suited to meet the growing need for objective analysis and opinion.

Anticipating the changing performance requirements for U.S. school systems, Standard & Poor’s
School Evaluation Services (SES) analyzes academic, financial and demographic indicators to enable
better decisions by all education stakeholders. Last year, SES was awarded a significant contract to
help develop a Web site, www.schoolresults.org, with assessment data for all 50 states — the largest
database of information on education ever made available to the public.

[ McGraw-Hill Education is also helping to drive the transformation of education, both in the U.S.
and abroad.

One of the most significant aspects of this transformation involves the use of technology to
enhance the learning and teaching experience. Our Higher Education, Professional and
International Group’s efforts in this area began several years ago in college classrooms, and they
have enabled us to build market share by dramatically increasing the value proposition we offer to
instructors and students. New online tools enable instructors to teach more effectively and efficiently
by customizing content; they also provide a more active learning environment for students by
broadening access to educational resources beyond textbooks.

Now we are extending this expertise to the early childhood, primary and secondary school
markets. For our School Education Group, this means not only incorporating multimedia tools
throughout our offerings, but also developing new ways to connect students, teachers and parents.

While the pre-K-to-12th-grade market opportunity will not be robust in 2004, the long-term
trends remain strong, and 2005 will be the first of several big buying years nationwide. The federal
No Child Left Behind Act, passed in 2001, continues to have a significant impact on the education
marketplace, including new federal funding to states for reading programs that provide the
educational foundation for children. Moreover, the Act’s accountability provisions have created
widespread opportunities for our testing and assessment offerings.

To best address the needs of the education marketplace, especially the urban centers most in
need of support, we created a new unit, McGraw-Hill Learning, to enhance our ability to provide
the most effective educational materials. In so doing, we hope to deepen our relationships with
educators and administrators serving millions of children in urban markets.

[ OurInformation and Media Services (IMS) businesses are well positioned to meet the changing
needs of the customers they serve. BusinessWeek, constantly focused on providing relevant, timely
insight and unmatched editorial quality, celebrates its 75th anniversary this year. It does so with

a redesigned look and a new digital edition that will help propel it forward in 2004.




Cost-containment efforts have softened the impact of a difﬁcult\z\%v \ti/singﬂnarket for our IMS
businesses, which also include our broadcast stations and our energy, e(@/st/{uction and aviation
franchises. Each is well positioned to grow as the economy improves. These businesses are all vital in
their respective markets and have adapted to changing market conditions by using technology to
create new opportunities for growth.

CONSTANT CHANGE

We enter 2004 with the expectation that the pace of change
will only accelerate and that the needs of the individuals, markets
and societies we serve will continue to evolve.

The ability to interpret and respond to change has been a hallmark of The McGraw-Hill
Companies since its founding 116 years ago during the industrial revolution. While we adjust to
change, we remain true to our mission. Qur commitment to independence, integrity and fairness
runs throughout the organization.

Iam proud of the wisdom and experience provided by our Board of Directors, which continues
to work effectively on behalf of our shareholders. I especially want to acknowledge the contributions
of Vartan Gregorian, who will retire in 2004 following 14 years of distinguished service. His intellect
and insight have been enormously valuable to me, to the Board and to the management team.

In 2003, as they have for generations, our customers turned to the talented and dedicated men
and women of The McGraw-Hill Companies for the insight and analysis they need to move ahead
during times of uncertainty and change.

Our enthusiasm and optimism reflect our leadership positions, our record of success and, most
of all, our confidence in the diverse talents and the enormous energy of our employees. They enable
us not only to adapt to change, but also to thrive amidst it.

And they do so constantly.

Sincerely,

/wz/z;, S

HAROLD McGRAW Il
February 25, 2004







Hezndsed ang Poors Bortiois Bk Tracker

Bistnbution of Portiohc Vaiue

ERMTIH T
i

:

‘

o veeeetupfptth

Struriviy -
Reundur i b
aned 287 : : ‘

DyRanic, IneVEive — Ene Comple. TotryS STuehured
finance market is creating new ways to access capital,
new techniques to manage risk and new asset classes in
which to invest. But the rapid growth of new types

of financial instruments also brings new challenges.
Standard & Poor’s is responding by building on its market
leadership as the world's foremost provider of
independent credit ratings and risk evaluation.

in 2003, Standard & Poor’s launched Credit Risk Tracker,
a comprehensive credit-modeling and information service
covering some 500,000 private European companies.
The new service, which marks a milestone in assessing
the creditworthiness of such firms, enables financial

institutions to better evaluate credit risk, thereby
improving efficiency in the €10 trillion private-company
lending market. It also facilitates further growth in the
structured finance market by enabling the securitization
of more private loans. In so doing, it enhances private
companies’ access to capital, which promotes investment
that creates new opportunities, new facilities and
new jobs.
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where learning materials are available not just online,
but from anywhere that offers wireless access;
where the professor poses a question and students
respond using their wireless handheld devices; where
instructors send course updates via text messages
to cell phones, and students begin research
instantaneously.

It's a classroom that's here today, courtesy of
McGraw-Hill Education’s pioneering efforts to integrate
technology and content in new ways. PageQut, our
online course-management tool, averages 1 million
hits per day. And GradeSummit, our Web-based
diagnostic and assessment tool, has been expanded
to cover 13 academic disciplines.

Students, parents, employers and employees know
that today’s economy requires an educated workforce,
That's why the need — and the demand — for higher
education and professional development has never
been greater.
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Tagey's CERnEmIes, MErkEEs end SOEistes are
increasing in-complexity, even as they becorne more
intertwined. Sweeping trends are bringing changes to how
businesses operate, markets function, investors allocate
capital and policymakers govern. And they're driving
worldwide demand for trusted, relevant and timely
analysis and information. More and more people are
turning to The McGraw-Hill Companies for insight. They
choose us for the reach of our coverage, the depth of our
knowledge, the quality of our analysis and the integrity

of our offerings. )

Those strengths are apparent in BusinessiWeek's new
digital edition — and its status as the world’s best-selling
business magazine, with a circulation of approximately
1.2 million and 5.6 million readers each week. And they're
apparent when three BusinessWeek reporters receive the
2003 George Polk Award for business writing, when an
Aviation Week editor is named Aerospace Journalist of the
Decade, when Architectural Record receives a coveted
National Magazine Award for General Excellence, and
when KMGH, our Denver-based television station, is

award, the most prestigious prize in broadcast journalisrm.
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and new technologies to improve learning. More
accountability to measure how effectively education
funding is spent. More focus on early-childhood learning,
on education in urban areas, on leaving no child behind.
These attitudes are creating an education market in which
all students must be equipped with the knowledge and
skills needed to succeed in a rapidly changing world.

As aleading provider of pre-K-to-12th-grade
educational materials, McGraw-Hill Education is set on
improving the ways students learn and teachers teach.

In 2003, Yearly ProgressPro Math, the only mathematics-
curriculum-based measurement tool that enables
elementary school teachers to use the Internet to improve
student performance, was expanded to grades 7 and 8;
it'’s currently being used by 120,000 students in

11 states. CTB/McGraw-Hill, the leader in educational
testing, added more content areas to its i-know online
assessment system and introduced assessments tailored
to state standards. And our proven Open Court Reading
program has been enhanced with a suite of tocls, including
student assessment, professional development and

a multimedia learning program called Onfine Phonics.
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transformation of industries and professions creates
plenty of both. In the aviation, construction and energy
industries, and across all businesses, powerful forces are
driving change, including competition from new entrants,
consolidation ameng former rivals and the development
of new technologies. Survival depends on adapting to
constantly changing market conditions; success requires
the ability to anticipate those changes and seize
opportunities as they arise.

We're focused on helping our customers navigate these
changes. The McGraw-Hill Construction Network,
launched in 2003, connects people, projects and products
by integrating information and intelfigence online, creating
new business opportunities for our customers. Platts, the
leader in providing information and analytical tools to the
energy business, continues to foster greater price trans-
parency to create a level playing field. Platts also offers
solutions such as POWERMap, which enables customers to
identify potential problems in the energy grid before they
occur. For medical professionals, our accessmedicine.com
portal provides easy access to authoritative information,
and a new application helps physicians, using PDAs, make
diagnoses at the point of care,
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savings for a child's college tuition, retirement planning.
And it's unfamiliar ground; anticipating changing needs is
a daunting challenge. The need.for. financial transparency
and investment advice has never been greater, And with
our established reputation for independence, demand
continues to grow for Standard & Poor's equity research
and index services.

Standard & Poor’s is the largest independent equity
research firm in the world. Over the last 17 years,

S&P’s 5-STARS recommendations have outperformed
the S&P 500 by more than 7% on an average annualized
basis. Our global network of analysts also offers in-depth
reports on more than 15,000 U.S. mutual funds.and
provides access to performance data on nearly 80,000
investment funds globally. in 2003, we added the
fast-growing managed accounts market to our universe
of coverage.

In 2003, Standard & Poor’s also added a family of
benchmark indexes — now called the S&P/Citibank Global
Equity Indices — to its market-leading lineup. S&P indexes
are linked to more than $1 trillion traded in mutual funds,
Exchange-Traded Funds and other investment vehicles,

i,_ —
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The McGraw-Hill Companies
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Left: Pictured with Chairman Harold McGraw III and Chairman
Emeritus Harold W. McGraw, Jr. (seated) are the 2003 Harold W.
McGraw, Jr. Prize in Education winners (left to right): Kati Haycock,
Director, The Education Trust; Mark Edwards, Superintendent,
Henrico County Public Schools, Virginia; and Carol Tvigg, Executive
Director, Center for Academic Transformation, Rensselaer
Polytechnic Institute. Right: Employees volunteer at the school
supplies drive the Corporation sponsors every August to benefit
children living in central Ohio homeless shelters.

CHANGING COMMUNITIES, CONSTANT COMMITMENT

The McGraw-Hill Companies is committed to helping people around the world learn, grow, acquire
new skills, better their lives and, in doing so, better their communities. This commitment to corporate
citizenship has been a hallmark of The McGraw-Hill Companies since it was founded in 1888.

We strive to meet the changing needs of each community by encouraging our employees to
volunteer, by making grants to organizations around the world that share our goals, and through
in-kind giving. The Corporation was ranked fifth among all companies in the S&P 500 for in-kind
giving in BusinessWeek's 2003 Corporate Philanthropy special report.

Drawing upon our expertise in the financial services, education and business information
markets, the Corporation continues to expand its philanthropic focus on financial literacy. Financial
literacy provides the foundation for saving and investing wisely. [tis the basis for the responsible use
of credit and money and for making informed financial decisions that can create opportunities for
our families and our future.

For the past 16 years, the Corporation has awarded the prestigious Harold W. McGraw, Jr. Prize in
Education to remarkable individuals who have committed themselves to improving education in this




Left: Chairman Harold McGraw III delivered the keynote address
at the Council of Urban Boards of Education conference in
Charlotte, N.C., focusing on the challenges of improving
performance. McGraw-Hill Education sponsored the conference.
Right: Six crews from The McGraw-Hill Companies participated

in the annual Dragon Boat Race on the Thames in London, raising
funds for recreational water activities for the local community.

country. The Prize was established in 1988 to honor the lifelong commitment of our chairman

emeritus to education and to mark the Corporation’s 100th anniversary.

The McGraw-Hill Companies’ commitment to corporate citizenship extends beyond our
philanthropy to our involvement in public affairs. In 2003, we worked with policymakers around the
world to enhance the climate for business growth and to enable our business units to more effectively
serve their customers. The appointment in 2003 of Harold McGraw III as chairman of the Business
Roundtable’s International Trade and Investment Task Force provides new opportunities to shape
the views of the public and policymakers on the importance of trade and global engagement to
economic growth.

In addition, we worked to assure our customers of our continued ability to protect the privacy of
personal data they provide to us, and we advocated strong intellectual property protections to help
ensure that the educational material and business information our customers receive is genuine, not
an illegally pirated copy.

21




22

The McGraw-Hill companies

CHANGING ENVIRONMENTS, CONSTANT GROWTH

For more than a century, The McGraw-Hill Companies has been a constant source of essential
information in the changing markets it serves. The Corporation is aligned around three powerful
and enduring forces essential to economic growth worldwide: the need for capital, the need
for knowledge and the need for transparency. The McGraw-Hill Companies has built strong
businesses with leading market positions in financial services, education and business information
to meet these needs.

www megraw-hill.com
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McGRAW-HILL FINANCIAL SERVICES

Standard & Poor’s is the world’s foremost provider of independent credit ratings, indexes,
risk evaluation, investment research and valuations. An essential part of the global financial
infrastructure, Standard & Poor’s has played a leading role for more than 140 years in providing
investors with the independent benchmarks they need to feel more confident about their investment
and financial decisions.

Standard & Poor’s has the world’s largest network of credit ratings professionals. It provides
ratings services for a wide array of credit obligations, including corporate and municipal bonds,
asset- and mortgage-backed securities, sovereign governments and bank loans. It also provides
evaluation services for risk management and credit performance, as well as performance evaluation
services for corporate governance and schools.

Standard & Poor’s is also a leading provider of independent equity and funds research, financial
commentary, Cor}iorate data, investment advice and real-time market data to investment managers
and advisors. In addition, it develops and manages benchmark indexes known throughout the world,
including the S&P 500 Index, the S&P Global 1200 Index and many others.

In the U.S., Standard & Poor’s is a leader in providing valuation and value analysis for financial
reporting, tax, business combinations, corporate restructuring, capital allocation and capital
structure purposes.

wuww. standardandpoors.com




AT A GLANCE

McGRAY-HILL EDUCATION

McGraw-Hill Education is a global leader in education and professional information. The
Corporation has built its education division into a powerhouse covering virtually every aspect of the
market from pre-K to professional learning. It has two core units:

School Education Group is a leader in the U.S. pre-K-to-12th-grade market. Providing
educational and professional development materials in any format, the group’s imprints include
SRA/McGraw-Hill, Wright Group/McGraw-Hill, Macmillan/McGraw-Hill and Glencoe/McGraw-
Hill. The nation’s leader in testing and assessment, CTB/McGraw-Hill, is also part of this group.

Higher Education, Professional, and International Group is the leading technological innovator
in the field, offering e-books, online tutoring, customized course Web sites and subscription services,
as well as traditional materials, to the higher education market. Professional operations focus on
professional, reference and trade publishing for medical, business, engineering and other
professions. International operations cover markets worldwide with locally developed materials as
well as English-language materials. McGraw-Hill Education is a leading American publisher of
Spanish-language educational materials for the Latin American and European markets.

www.mheducation. com
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McGRAW-HILL INFORMATION AND MEDIA SERVICES

These market-leading brands provide information, business intelligence and solutions that
business, government and professionals worldwide use to remain competitive in their fields and in
the global economy.

The Business-to-Business Group includes:

BusinessWeek, the world's best-selling business magazine with a circulation of nearly 1.2 million
and 5.6 million readers worldwide each week. The franchise also includes BusinessWeek Online and
BusinessWeek Television. www businessweek.com

Platts, the world’s largest energy information and services provider, serving the electricity, natural
gas, oil, oil shipping, coal, nuclear energy, petrochemicals and metals markets. www.platts.com

McGraw-Hill Construction, which connects people, projects and products across the design and
construction industry. www.construction. com

Aviation Week, the largest multimedia information provider to the aviation and aerospace
industry. www.AviationNow.com

Healthcare Information, a provider of clinical and business intelligence and marketing services
to the healthcare industry. www megrau-hill. com/healthcare

The Broadcasting Group consists of ABC-affiliated television stations in Bakersfield, Calif.
(KERO); Denver, Colo. (KMGH}); Indianapolis, Ind. (WRTV); and San Diego, Calif. (KGTV).
wuww.megraw-hill.com/broadcast
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FINANCIAL CHARTS

OPERATING PROFIT BY SEGMENT
[dollars in millions]
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Includes the following items:
All years have been restated to exclude discontinued
operations as a result of the disposition of ComStock and
the planned disposition of the Landoll, Frank Schaffer and
related juvenile retail businesses.
2002 Loss on the sale of MMS International
2001 Restructuring and asset write-down

Gain on the sale of DRI

Write-down of certain assets, contribution of

Rational Investors and the shutdown of Blue List

OPERATING REVENUE BY SEGMENT
{dollars in millions]
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Alf years have been restated to exclude discontinued
operations as a result of the disposition of ComStock and
the planned disposition of the Landoll, Frank Schaffer
and related juvenile retail businesses.

M information and Media Services

3 Financial Services

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES BY SEGMENT
{dollars in millions]
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Includes investments in prepublication costs,
purchases of property and equipment, and additions to
technology projects.

3 McGraw-Hill Education




MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview of 2003 and Cutlook

In 2003, the Company achieved growth in rev-

enue and income from operations despite con-

tinued difficult market conditions for some of
its businesses. Revenue growth of 4.0% out-
paced a 3.3% increase in expenses. The dollar
also weakened considerably against several cur-
rencies, which contributed to year over year
growth in revenue and income from continu-

ing operations by $55.5 million and $19.4 mil-

lion, respectively. The Financial Services

segment was a key growth driver this year as
segment revenue and operating profit grew

13.7% and 19.0%, respectively.

Growth in the Financial Services segment
was driven by a strong mix that included:

* Growth in structured finance and corporate
finance ratings which reflect favorable mar-
ket conditions, including a continued low
interest rate environment,

¢ Strong growth internationally, particularly in
structured finance, as international issuers
have embraced securitization as a source of
funding. Overseas activity now produces
28.8% of total Financial Services revenues.

® Growth in bank loan ratings, counterparty
credit ratings and global infrastructure ratings.
Results for the McGraw-Hill Education

segment were slightly below the prior year as

revenues remained flat and operating profit
declined by 3.4%. Economic conditions con-
tinued to adversely affect the Schoal

Education Group’s markets. In the Texas social

studies adoption, the year’s largest sales oppor-

tunity, the Group led all competition with its
strong lineup of print and multimedia prod-
ucts for grades six through twelve but did not
achieve comparable success in the smaller,
kindergarten through fifth grade portion of
the adoption. In the open territory states, the
market-leading alternative basal programs,

Open Court Reading and Everyday Mathematics,

added substantially to their customer bases

with new adoptions in major urban districts.

The School Education Group experienced

good growth in the custom assessment market,

as state education officials began to expand
their testing programs in accordance with the
requirements of the No Child Left Behind Act,
but those gains were partially offset by the Act’s

depressive effect on sales of standardized test

products to local school districts. The majority

of federal Reading First funds reached the
market late in the year and had a limited impact
on 2003, although the Group’s research-based
programs captured a significant share of the
allocations that were spent on instructional
materials. More federal testing and Reading

First funds will be available in 2004. Despite

the funding problems of the last few vears,

improving education has remained a top pri-
ority with the American public and with politi-
cians at all levels of government.

The Higher Education, Professional and
International Group experienced revenue
growth of 1.5%. The McGraw-Hill Companies
continues to improve its position in education
by growing its college and university business,
the least cyclical part of that market.

In 2003, the Information and Media
Services segment continued to be impacted
by the soft advertising market. However, cost
containment continues to be a priority in
this segment.

In 2003 and the beginning of 2004, the
Company disposed of the following busi-
nesses and investments that no longer fit its
strategic plans:

* S&P ComStock: In February 2003, the
Company divested S&P ComStock
(ComStock), the real-time market data unit
of the Financial Services segment. The sale
resulted in a $56.8 million after-tax gain or
30 cents per diluted share, and an $87.0 mil-
lion pre-tax gain, which is reflected as a dis-
continued operation on the income
statement. ComStock was formerly part of
the Financial Services segment. The disposi-
tion and results of operations for the period
contributed $87.5 million pre-tax and
$57.2 million after-tax or 30 cents per
diluted share.

The divestiture of ComStock is consistent
with Financial Services’ strategy of directing
resources to those businesses which have the
best opportunities to achieve both significant
financial growth and market leadership. The
divestiture enables Financial Services to bring
greater focus to the overall objective for the
core investment services business, which is to
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strengthen its position as the world’s leading
provider of independent investment research,
analysis, data and products for investment
managers and advisors.

¢ Rock-McGraw, Inc. equity investment: Consis-
tent with the Company’s strategy to direct
resources to growth opportunities in each
of its businesses, in December 2003, the
Company sold its 45% equity investment

in Rock-McGraw, Inc. The Company will
remain an anchor tenant of what will con-
tinue to be known as The McGraw-Hill
Companies Building and will continue to
lease space from Rock-McGraw, Inc. under
an existing lease for approximately 16 years.
Currently, the Company leases approxi-
mately 18% of the building space. The lease
is being accounted for as an operating lease.
The transaction was valued at $450.0 mil-
lion, including assumed debt. Proceeds
from the disposition were $382.1 million.
The sale resulted in a pre-tax gain of

$181.8 million and an after-tax benefit of
$58.4 million, or 30 cents per diluted share
in 2003. Pursuant to sale-leaseback account-
ing rules, a gain of approximately $212.3 mil-
lion ($126.3 million after-tax) was deferred
and will be amortized over the remaining
lease term as a reduction in rent expense.
Prior to the sale the Company received a div-
idend of $103.5 million from Rock-McGraw
in connection with the conversion of the lat-
ter into a REIT in accordance with the plans
of the purchaser of the Company’s interest
and the continuing partner in the joint ven-
ture company.

Landoll, Frank Schaffer and velated juvenile
retail publishing businesses (juvenile retarl pub-
lishing business): In January 2004, the
Company sold the juvenile retail publishing
business, part of the McGraw-Hill Education
segment’s School Education Group. The
Juvenile retail publishing business produced
consumer-oriented learning products for
sale through educational dealers, mass mer-
chandisers, bookstores and e-commerce.

As a result of this planned disposition, as of
December 31, 2003, in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 144, “Accounting for the

Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” the Company reviewed the carrying
value of the juvenile retail publishing business
net assets and adjusted the net assets

to their fair market value less cost to sell.

Accordingly, during the fourth quarter, the

Company recognized impairments to the

carrying value of the juvenile retail publish-

ing business net assets of approximately
$75.9 million ($54.1 million net of tax), or

28 cents per diluted share in 2003,

Approximately $70.1 million of that charge

was a write-off of goodwill and intangibles.

The lower tax rate on the loss from the sale

of the juvenile retail publishing business in

comparison to the Company’s normal
effective tax rate is due to certain goodwill
associated with the business that had no tax
basis. This had no impact on the Company’s
effective tax rate as the juvenile retail
publishing business is reflected in discontin-
ued operations.

As aresult of the Company’s planned dis-
position of the juvenile retail publishing
business, the Company reflected the results
of these businesses as discontinued opera-
tions for all periods presented. The planned
disposition and results of operations for the
period resulted in a loss of $81.1 million,
$57.3 million after-tax, or 30 cents per
diluted share. Accordingly, all income state-
ment categories presented (except for dis-
continued operations) have been restated
to exclude amounts associated with the juve-
nile retail publishing business.

These businesses were selected for divesti-
ture as they no longer fit within the Company’s
strategic plans. The market was considered
to have limited future growth potential,
possessed unique sales channels, had low
profit margins and would have required
significant investment to achieve a limited
growth potential.

Proceeds from these dispositions will be
reinvested as part of the Company’s acquisition
growth strategy and to meet general operating
cash requirements.

In 2004, although projecting a soft adoption
vear in the K12 market, the Company is encour-
aged by the evidence of economic recovery




and has identified growth opportunities in key

markets. The Company plans to focus its

efforts on the following growth strategies:

¢ Continue to expand the Company’s opera-
tions overseas, primarily in Financial Services.

¢ Expand and refine the use of technology in
all segments to improve performance and
market penetration.

¢ Leverage existing capabilities into new services.

* Continue to make selective acquisitions

that complement the Company’s existing

business capabilities.

In addition to the above strategies the
Company will continue its efforts to control
costs and use technology to improve productiv-
ity. As a result of a soft adoption market and
growth in interest rates, the Company projects
income from continuing operations to increase
in the mid-to-high single digits in 2004, without
the recurrence of the 30 cent benefit from the
sale of the equity in Rock-McGraw, Inc. How-
ever, there can be no assurance that the
Company will achieve success implementing
any one or more of its strategies.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s discussion and analysis of its
financial condition and results of operations is
based upon the Company’s consolidated finan-
cial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in the United States. The prepara-
tion of these financial statements requires the
Company to make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts of assets, lia-
bilities, revenues and expenses, and related dis-
closure of contingent assets and liabilities.

On an ongoing basis, the Company evalu-
ates its estimates and assumptions, including
those related to revenue recognition, allowance
for doubtful accounts and sales returns,
valuation of inventories, prepublication costs,
valuation of long-lived assets, goodwill and
other intangible assets, pension plan assump-
tions and income taxes. The Company bases
its estimates on historical experience and on
various other assumptions that it believes to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis for making judgments
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities

that cannot readily be determined from other
sources. There can be no assurance that actual
results will not differ from those estimates.

The Company believes the following critical
accounting policies require it to make signifi-
cant judgments and estimates in the prepara-
tion of its consolidated financial statements:

Revenue recognition: Revenue is recognized
when goods are shipped to customers or serv-
ices are rendered. Units whose revenue is prin-
cipally from service contracts record revenue
as earned. Revenue relating to agreements
that provide for more than one service is rec-
ognized based upon the relative fair value to
the customer of each service component and
as each component is earned. If the fair value
to the customer for each service is not objec-
tively determinable, revenue is recorded as
unearned and recognized ratably over the
service period. Fair value is determined for
each service component through a bifurcation
analysis that relies upon the pricing of similar
cash arrangements that are not part of the
multi-element arrangement. Advertising rev-
enue is recognized when the page is run or the
spot is aired. Subscription income is recog-
nized over the related subscription period.

Product revenue comprises the revenue
from the McGraw-Hill Education segment
and the circulation revenue from the
Information and Media Services segment,
and represents educational products,
primarily books, and magazines. Service
revenue represents the revenue of the
Financial Services segment and remaining
revenue of the Information and Media
Services segment which represents
information-related services and advertising.

Unearned revenue was $595.4 million and
$539.0 million as of December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. The increase was primarily
attributable to the Financial Services segment’s
ratings products.

During 2003, the Company adopted the
Emerging Issues Task Force consensus EITF
No. 00-21, “Accounting for Revenue
Relationships with Multiple Deliverables.”

As aresult, the Company changed its method
of accounting for multiple deliverables. This
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change did not materially impact the consoli-
dated financial statements.

For the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, no significant changes have
been made to the underlying assumptions
related to estimates of revenue or the method-
ologies applied.

Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales
returns: The accounts receivable reserve
methodology is based on historical analysis
and a review of outstanding balances.

The impact on operating profit for a one-
percentage point change in the allowance
for doubtful accounts is $12.0 million. A
significant estimate in the McGraw-Hill
Education segment, and particularly within
the Higher Education, Professional and
International Group, is the allowance for
sales returns, which is based on the historical
rate of return and current market conditions.
Should the estimate for the Higher Education,
Professional and International Group vary

by one-percentage point, it would have an
approximate $10.0 million impact on
operating profit.

For the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, management made no mate-
rial changes in its assumptions regarding the
determination of the allowance for doubtful
accounts and sales returns.

Prepublication costs: Prepublication costs, prin-
cipally outside preparation costs, are amortized
from the year of publication over their esti-
mated useful lives, one to five years, using either
an accelerated or straightline method. The
majority of the programs are amortized using
an accelerated methodology. The Company
periodically evaluates the remaining lives,
which are sometimes dependent upon program
acceptance by state adoption authorities and
recoverability of such costs, based on expected
undiscounted cash flows.

For the year ended December 31, 2003,
prepublication amortization expense was
$282.5 million, representing 14.1% of consoli-
dated operating related expenses and 14.4%
of the McGraw-Hill Education segment’s total
expenses. If the annual prepublication amorti-
zation varied by one percentage point, the

consolidated amortization expense would have
increased by approximately $3.0 million.

For the vears ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, no significant changes have
been made to the amortization rates applied
to prepublication costs, the underlying
assumptions related to estimates of amortiza-
tion or the methodology applied.

Valuation of inventories: Inventories are stated
at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or mar-
ket. A significant estimate in the McGraw-Hill
Education segment is the reserve for inventory
obsolescence. The reserve is based upon man-
agement’s assessment of the marketplace of
products in demand as compared to the
number of units currently on hand. Should
the estimate for inventory obsolescence for the
Company vary by one percentage point, it
would have an approximate $4.6 million impact
on operating profit.

For the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, management made no mate-
rial changes in its assumptions regarding the
determination of the valuation of inventories.

Intangibles, goodwill and other long-lived
assets: The Company reviews long-lived assets,
including intangible assets, and goodwill for
impairment annually, or sooner whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate
the carrying amounts of such assets may not be
recoverable. Upon such an occurrence, recov-
erability of these assets is determined as follows:
Intangibles with indefinite lives are tested by
comparing their carrying amounts to fair
value. Impairment within goodwill is tested
using a two-step method. The first step is to
compare the fair value of the reporting unit

to its book value, including goodwill. If the fair
value of the unit is less than its book value the
second step is taken. The Company then deter-
mines the implied fair value of goodwill by
deducting the fair value of the reporting unit’s
net assets from the fair value of the reporting
unit. If the book value of goodwill is greater
than its implied fair value, the Company
writes down goodwill to its implied fair value.
For long-lived assets that are held for use,

the Company compares the forecasted
undiscounted net cash flows to the carrying




outside actuaries and other advisors where
deemed appropriate. In accordance with
relevant accounting standards, if actual results
differ from the Company’s assumptions, such
differences are deferred and amortized over
the estimated future working life of the plan
participants. While the Company believes that
the assumptions used in these calculations are
reasonable, differences in actual experience
or changes in assumptions could affect the
expenses and liabilities related to the Company’s

amount. If the long-]ived asset is determined to
be unable to recover the carrying amount,
then it is written down to fair value. For long-
lived assets held for sale, assets are written
down to fair value less costs to sell.

Fair value is determined based on discounted
cash flows, appraised values or management’s
estimates, depending upon the nature of the
assets. In estimating future cash flows for the
Company's businesses, internal budgets were
used. The budgets were based on recent sales
data for existing products, planned timing of
new product Jaunches or capital projects, and
customer commitments related to new and
existing products. These budgets also included
assumptions of future production volumes and

pension and other postretirement benefits.

Following is a discussion of some significant
assumptions that the Company makes in deter-
mining costs and obligations for pension and
other postretirement benefits:

pricing of products.

The Company performed its impairment
assessment on long-lived assets, including
intangible assets and goodwill in accordance
with the methods prescribed above. The
Company concluded that no impairment
existed, with the exception of the juvenile
retail publishing business, which was adjusted
to fair value less cost to sell, as aresult of a
planned disposition and in accordance with
the SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”
(see Note 2 in the Company’s Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements as of
December 31, 2003).

Retirement pians and postretirement healthcare

and other benefits: The Company’s pension
plans and postretirement benefit plans are
accounted for using actuarial valuations
required by SFAS No. 87, “Employers’
Accounting for Pensions,” and SFAS No. 106,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement
Benefits Other Than Pensions.”

The Company’s employee pension and
other postretirement benefit costs and
obligations are dependent on assumptions
concerning the outcome of future events
and circumstances, including compensation
increases, long-term return on pension plan
assets, healthcare cost trends, discount rates
and other factors. In determining such
assumptions, the Company consults with

* Discount rate assumptions are based on

current yields on high-grade corporate long- ‘

term bonds.

* Salary growth assumptions are based on the
Company’s long-term actual experience and

future outlook.

¢ Healthcare cost trend assumptions are
based on historical market data, the near-
term outlook and an assessment of likely
long-term trends.

* Long-term return on pension plan assets is
based on a calculated market-related value
of assets, which recognizes changes in
market value over five years.

In 2003, for the purpose of determining net

periodic pension expense, the Company used
areturn on plan assets assumption of 8.75%.
The 2003 return assumption was reduced
from 9.5% on January 1, 2003, o reflect
lower expected returns on investments due
to expected long-term market weakness.
Additionally, effective January 1, 2003, the
Company changed its discount rate assump-
tion on its retirement plans to 6.75% from
7.25% utilized in 2002.

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company
changed its discount rate assumption on its

retirement plans to 6.25% from 6.75% in 2003.

There was no change in the 2004 expected
return on plan asset assumptions. The effect
of these changes on pension income for 2004
is expected to be $12.8 million pre-tax, or

4 cents per diluted share.
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Income taxes: The Company accounts for
income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differ-
ences between financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled.

Management's judgment is required in
determining the Company’s provision for
income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabil-
ities. In calculating the provision for income
taxes on an interim basis, the Company uses
an estimate of the annual effective tax rate
based upon the facts and circumstances known.
The Company’s effective tax rate is based on-
expected income, statutory tax rates and per-
manent differences between financial state-
ment and tax return income applicable to the
Company in the various jurisdictions in which
the Company operates. Significant judgment is
required in determining the Company’s effec-
tive tax rate and in evaluating the Company’s
tax position, The Company establishes reserves
when, despite its belief that the tax return
positions are fully supportable, it believes that
certain positions are likely to be challenged
and it may not succeed. The Company adjusts
these reserves in light of changing facts and
circumstances. The effective tax rate includes
the impact of reserve provisions and changes
to reserves that the Company considers appro-
priate. At year-end, the actual effective tax rate
is calculated based upon the actual results for
the full fiscal year and taking into considera-
tion facts and circumstances known at year-
end. In determining the need for a valuation
allowance, the historical and projected finan-
cial performance of the operation recording a
net deferred tax asset is considered along with
any other pertinent information.

For the years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001, management made no
material changes in its assumptions regarding
the determination of the provision for income
taxes. However, certain events could occur that

would materially affect the Company’s estimates
and assumptions regarding-deferred taxes.
Changes in current tax laws and applicable
enacted tax rates could affect the valuation of
deferred tax assets and liabilities, thereby
impacting the Company’s income tax provision.

Management has discussed the development
and selection of these critical accounting esti-
mates with the Audit Committee of the
Company'’s Board of Directors. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Company’s dis-
closure relating to them in this Management’s
Discussion and Analysis.

Results of Operations

Consolidated Review

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Operating Revenue  $4,827.9  $4,640.2 $4,474.6
% Increase 4.0 3.7 6.7
Operating Profit $1,099.2 $1,011.8 § 7642
% Increase (Decrease) 8.6 32.4 (15.4)
% Operating Margin 23 22 17
Income from

Continuing

Operations

Before Taxes $1,130.3 $§ 8974 § 616.1

Income from
Continuing

Operations $ 687.8 § 5720 § 3777

(Loss)/Earnings
on Discontinued

Operations $ OYE 48 § (0N

$ 6877 § 5768 $§ 377.0

Net Income

Operating profit is income before taxes on income, inter-
est expense and corporate expense.

2003 Compared with 2002

The Segment Review that follows is incorporated
herein by reference.

Revenue and Earnings

Operating revenue increased 4.0%, or

$187.7 million to $4.8 billion, as compared to
the prior year. Operating profit of $1.1 billion
increased 8.6%. The revenue and operating
profitincrease is primarily attributable to
growth in the Financial Services segment.




Favorable foreign exchange rates contributed
to the growth in operating revenue and income
from continuing operations by $55.5 million
and $19.4 million, respectively.

Product revenue increased only slightly to
$2.4 billion as compared to the prior vear, due
to the lighter adoption calendar. Product rev-
enue comprises the revenue from the McGraw-
Hill Education segment and the circulation -
revenue from the Information and Media
Services segment, and represents educational
products, primarily books and magazines.

Service revenue increased to $2.4 billion,
an increase of 7.2%. Service revenue com-
prises the revenue of the Financial Services
segment and the remaining revenue of the
Information and Media Services segment,
and represents information-related services
and advertising. The growth in service revenue
is attributable to the growth in the Financial
Services segment, primarily due to structured
and corporate finance ratings.

In December 2003, the Company sold its
45% equity investment in Rock-McGraw, Inc.
The sale resulted in a pre-tax gain of $131.3 mil-
lion and an after-tax benefit of $58.4 million,
or 30 cents per diluted share in 2003. The
impact from this transaction on the effective
tax rate for the year ended December 31,
2003, is an increase of 2.1 percentage points.
The higher rate of tax on the Rock-McGraw,
Inc. gain in comparison to the Company’s nor-
mal effective tax rate reflects higher state taxes
because of the concentration of Rock-McGraw,
Inc. in New York City. Pursuant to sale-lease-
back accounting rules, a gain of approximately
$212.3 million ($126.3 million after tax)
was deferred and will be amortized over the
remaining lease term as a reduction in rent
expense. Since the Company will maintain
a significant presence in the headquarters
building owned by Rock-McGraw, Inc., the
sale-leaseback rules under SFAS No. 28
“Accounting For Sales with Leasebacks” apply.
See Note 14.

Qther income increased $152.9 million to
$171.5 million from the prior year. Other
income includes a $131.3 million pre-tax gain
on the disposition of the Company’s equity
investment in Rock-McGraw, Inc. in 2003 and

a $14.5 million pre-tax loss on the disposition
of MMS International in 2002.

Income from continuing operations was
$687.8 million, 2 $115.8 million increase over
2002. Excluded from the results of continuing
operations are the results of S&P ComStock
and Landoll, Frank Schaffer and related juve-
nile retail publishing businesses (juvenile retail
publishing business), which were disposed of
during February 2003 and January 2004,
respectively, and are accounted for as discon-
tinued operations. ComStock was part of the
Financial Services segment. The juvenile retail
publishing business was part of the McGraw-
Hill Education segment.

In September 2002, the Financial Services
segment divested MMS International, which
resulted in a pre-tax loss of $14.5 million and
an after-tax benefit of $2.0 million, 1 cent per
diluted share. The variance between the pre-
tax loss on the sale of MMS International and
the after-tax benefit is the result of previous
book write-downs and the inability of the
Company to take a tax benefit for the write-
downs until the unit was sold. The impact on
the effective tax rate for the year ended
December 31, 2002 from this transaction is
a reduction of 1.2 percentage points. The
divestiture of MMS International had a
negligible effect on current year results.

Operating Costs and Expenses
Total expenses increased only 3.3% in 2003
due to cost containment activities.

Product operating related expenses were
flat at $1.2 billion as compared with the 'prior
year primarily due to cost containment initia-
tives. Amortization of prepublication costs
increased $5.4 million to $282.5 million in
2003. For 2003, combined printing, paper and
distribution prices for productrelated manu-
facturing decreased by approximately 1.8% or
$8.6 million as a result of successful negotia-
tions with suppliers combined with weak mar-
ket conditions. A 1% decline in printing prices
and a 4.7% decline in paper prices more
than offset an increase in distribution prices
of 1.9%. Combined paper, printing and
distribution volumes declined approximately
9% in 2003 compared with 2002. Combined
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paper, printing and distribution expenses rep-
resents 24% of total operating related expense.
Service operating related expenses increased
only 3.2% primarily due to cost containment
efforts at Information and Media Services.

Selling and general product expenses
increased 2.0% because of technology spending.
Selling and general service expenses increased
11.6% to $844.9 million primarily from the
growth of the Financial Services segment.

A significant portion of both operating and
selling and general expense is salary expense,
which increased approximately 2% to $1.3 bil-
lion primarily as a result of merit increases.
Also contributing to the increase is a decline
in pension income from the Company’s U.S.
qualified retirement plans of $26.6 million pre-
tax, or 9 cents per diluted share. The decline
in the stock market performance for the three
years prior to 2003 negatively impacted the
return on the Company’s pension assets. Addi-
tionally, on January 1, 2003, the Company
changed its discount rate assumption on its
retirement plans to 6.75% from 7.25% utilized
in 2002 and its return on assets assumption to
8.75% from 9.5%.

Depreciation expense was $82.8 million, a
4.6% decrease compared to prior year. Lower
capital spending in the current and prior years
contributed to this decrease. Amortization of
intangibles decreased $3.3 million, or 9.1%,
due to certain balances becoming fully amor-
tized during the year.

In 2004, depreciation is expected to increase
as a result of the completion of the Company’s
new consolidated facilities in London and a
portion of the Global Transformation Project.
In February 2001, the Company entered into
a new lease for 20 Canada Square, Canary
Whart, London, for 266,000 square feet. The
facility, which will be occupied in 2004, will
house employees of the Company’s financial
services and business information operations,
including Standard & Poor’s, which will consol-
idate its London operations previously housed
in six separate facilities, as well as BusinessWeek
and Platts. The Global Transformation Project
will support the McGraw-Hill Education
segment’s global growth objectives, provide

technological enhancements to strengthen the
infrastructure of management information and
customer-centric services, enable process and
production improvements throughout the
organization, and position McGraw-Hill
Education to develop advanced digital products
as an emerging growth opportunity. Amortiza-
tion of prepublication costs is expected to
decrease in 2004 as a result of lower prepubli-
cation costs in recent years due to cost saving
initiatives and adoption cycles.

For 2004, combined printing, paper and
distribution prices for productrelated manu-
facturing are expected to increase by approxi-
mately 0.8% or $3.7 million. Printing prices
are expected to rise 1.0%. Overall paper prices
will be limited to a 0.4% increase due to the
carry forward impact of successful 2003 negoti-
ations and long-term agreements in place lim-
iting increases for a major portion of the
corporation’s paper purchases. No increase is
expected in overall distribution prices due to
successful negotiations with publication inter-
national mail suppliers and flat postal rates in
2004. Merit increases for 2004 will approxi-
mate 3.0%, unchanged from the prior year.
Effective January 1, 2004, the Company
changed its discount rate assumption on its
retirement plans to 6.25% from 6.75% in 2003.
There is no change in the 2004 expected
return in plan asset assumptions. The effect
of these changes on pension income for 2004
is expected to be $12.8 million pre-tax, or
4 cents per diluted share.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased 68.5% to $7.1 mil-
lion from $22.5 million reported in the prior
year. The primary reasons for the decrease
are the reduced average debt outstanding and
the reduction in the average interest rate

in 2003. Average commercial paper levels
decreased from $908.5 million in 2002 to
$387.1 million in 2003. The average interest
rate on commercial paper borrowings
decreased from 1.9% in 2002 t0 1.2% in
2003. Lower average debt levels accounted for
$9.9 million of the decrease, while lower aver-
age interest rates account for $2.5 million.




Interest income on higher domestic and for-
eign cash levels represented most of the
remaining reduction in interest expense.

Average interest rates on commercial paper
are anticipated to rise from current levels in
the second half of 2004, but full year average
rates are not expected to change materially
from those experienced in 2003.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes as a percent

of income from continuing operations before
taxes was 39.1% in 2003 and 36.3% in 2002.
The 2003 rate reflects the impact of the sale
of the Company’s equity investment of Rock-
McGraw, Inc. in 2003 (2.1 percentage point
increase). The 2002 rate reflects the impact of
the divestiture of MMS International (1.2 per-
centage point reduction). The 2004 effective
tax rate is expected to be approximately 37.0%.

income from Continuing Operations
Income from continuing operations was
$687.8 million, a $115.8 million increase over
2002. Excluded from the results of continuing
operations are the results of ComStock and
the juvenile retail publishing business, which
were disposed of during February 2003 and
January 2004, respectively, and are accounted
for as discontinued operations. ComStock was
part of the Financial Services segment. The
juvenile retail publishing business was part of
the McGraw-Hill Education segment.

Income/{Loss) from

Discontinued Cperations

Income/ (loss) from discontinued operations
for the year ended December 31, 2003 was
$(0.1) million compared to $4.8 million for
the same period in 2002, The juvenile retail
publishing business generated revenue of
approximately $66.6 million and $82.1 million,
and operating loss of approximately $5.1 mil-
lion and $1.2 million in 2003 and 2002, respec-
tively. ComStock generated revenue of
approximately $11.1 million and $65.4 mil-
lion, and operating profit of approximately
$0.6 million and $8.9 million in 2003 and
2002, respectively.

Net Income

Net income for the period increased $110.9 mil-
lion over the prior year. Diluted earnings per
share were $3.58 versus $2.96 in the prior year.

2002 Compared with 2001
The Segment Review that follows is incorporated
herein by reference.

Revenue and Earnings

Operating revenue for 2002 increased
$165.6 million, a 3.7% increase due to
growth in the Financial Services segment and
acquisitions. Operating profit of $1.0 billion
increased 32.4% from 2001. Product revenue
increased 2.1% to $2.4 billion as compared
to the prior year. Service revenue increased
to $2.3 billion, a 5.5% increase over the
prior year.

Excluded from these totals are the results of
the Landoll, Frank Shaffer and related juvenile
retail publishing businesses (juvenile retail
publishing business) which are reported in dis-
continued operations on the income state-
ment, due to their planned disposition. Also
included in discontinued operations is
ComStock, which was divested in February 2003.

In September 2002, the Financial Services
segment divested MMS International, which
resulted in a pre-tax loss of $14.5 million and
an after-tax benefit of $2.0 million, 1 cent per
diluted share. The variance between the pre-
tax loss on the sale of MMS International and
the after-tax benefit is the result of previous
book write-downs and the inability of the
Company to take a tax benefit for the write-
downs until the unit was sold. The impact from
the transaction on the effective tax rate for the
year ended December 31, 2002 is a reduction
of 1.2 percentage points.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company
announced a worldwide restructuring program
that included the exiting of certain businesses,
product lines and markets in each of the oper-
ating segments. As a result, the Company
recorded a restructuring and asset impairment
charge of $159.0 million pre-tax ($112.0 mil-
lion after-tax, or 57 cents per diluted share).
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Employee severance and benefits costs
amounted to $30.2 million pre-tax and were
included in operating related expenses in
2001. Also included in operating related
expenses in 2001 were $92.8 million in asset
impairment losses. In 2001, non-operating
expenses related to the restructuring consisted
of $36.0 million associated with the write-
downs of certain e-commerce and emerging
technology investments. As of December 31,
2002, this restructuring was completed.

The Company purchased Corporate Value
Consulting (CVC) in August 2001, recorded in
Financial Services, and Financial Times Energy
(FT Energy), in September 2001, recorded in
Information and Media Services. In 2002,
Corporate Value Consulting (CVC) added
$58.3 million of incremental revenue to the
Financial Services segment. FT Energy con-
tributed $28.2 million of incremental revenue
to Information and Media Services.

Beginning January 2002, in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142 (SFAS No. 142), “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” the Company no longer
amortizes goodwill. In 2002, the impact of
SFAS No. 142 was $56.6 million pre-tax, or
approximately 18 cents per diluted earnings
per share, and $51.6 million pre-tax, or approx-
imately 16 cents per diluted share on income
from continuing operations.

In May 2001, the Company divested DRI,
which resulted in a $26.3 million after-tax gain
(13 cents per diluted share, $8.8 million pre-
tax), recorded within the Financial Services
segment. The variance between the pre-tax
gain recognized on the sale of DRI of $8.8 mil-
lion and the after-tax benefit of $26.3 million
is the result of previous book write-downs and
the inability of the Company to take a tax ben-
efit for the write-downs until the unit was sold.
The impact on the 2001 effective tax rate for
this transaction was a reduction of 3.4 percent-
age points. Also included in net income in
2001 in the Financial Services segment was the
write-down of certain assets, the shutdown of
the Blue List and the contribution of Rational
Investors to mPower.com in exchange for
an equity position in the online investment

advisory service for the retirement market. The
total charge for these items was $21.9 million
after tax (11 cents per diluted share, $22.8 mil-
lion pre-tax}. The impact on the 2001 effective
tax rate from these actions was an increase

of 1.3 percentage points due to the inability

of the Company to take a benefit for these
write-downs. Net income for 2001 also
included $6.9 million pre-tax, 2 cents per
diluted share, related to a gain on the sale of
real estate in the first quarter of 2001, which
was recorded as other income on the consoli-
dated statement of income.

Other income in 2002 increased $8.6 mil-
lion due to the write-down of certain
e-commerce and emerging technology invest-
ments in 2001 ($36.0 million pre-tax) partially
offset by the loss from the MMS International
disposition ($14.5 million pre-tax).

Income from continuing operations
before taxes on income was $897.4 million,

a $281.3 million increase over 2001. The 2002
and 2001 results have been restated to exclude
the results of ComStock and the juvenile retail
publishing business’s results, which are now
reflected in discontinued operations on the
income statement.

Operating Costs and Expenses
Total expenses decreased due to cost con-
tainment activities in 2002, and the absence
of goodwill amortization and a restructuring
charge, which were included in 2001. In
2001, operating related expenses included
$123.0 million related to the restructuring.
Product operating related expenses included
the amortization of prepublication costs of
$277.1 million and $236.6 million in 2002 and
2001, respectively. Product operating related
expense decreased slightly, primarily due to
cost savings initiatives offset by an increase in
the amortization of prepublication costs.
Service operating related expense declined
2.8%, primarily due to the impact of cost sav-
ings measures. In 2002 combined paper, print-
ing and distribution prices for productrelated
manufacturing decreased by approximately
3.6%, or $17.4 million. Successful supplier
negotiations and weak conditions in the printing




and paper marketplaces more than offset a
4.3% increase in distribution prices resuliing
from a midyear 2002 increase from the U.S.
Postal Service and increases from other air-
freight and trucking carriers. Combined paper,
printing and distribution volumes declined 4%
in 2002 as compared with 2001. Combined
paper, printing and distribution expense repre-
sents 25% of operating related expense.

Selling and general expense was flat in 2002
as cost savings initiatives benefited the Company.
Product selling and general expense increased
$8.2 million and service selling and general
expense decreased $8.0 million. A significant
portion of both operating and selling and gen-
eral expense is salary expense, which
increased approximately 5.1% to $1.3 billion.
Compensation increased primarily due to
volume increases. Over the past several years,
the tight labor market caused most companies,
including The McGraw-Hill Companies, to
enhance rewards and benefits in order to
attract top talent. During 2001, the economy
slowed, altering this previous trend. The slow
economy continued in 2002, resulting in a
continuation of the labor relations pattern
established in 2001. In 2002, the Company
experienced a decrease in pension income
from the Company’s U.S. retirement plans of
$2.3 million. Effective January 1, 2003, the
Company changed its discount rate assump-
tion on its retirement plans to 6.75% from
7.25% utilized in 2002. The Company also
changed its return on assets assumption to
8.75% from 9.5% utilized in 2002.

Depreciation expense increased modestly,
by 1.2% over 2001, due to the completion of
the majority of the Manhattan Occupancy
Project, a reorganization of the New York facil-
ities. Amortization of intangibles increased
$3.7 million, 11.5% over 2001 due to recent
acquisitions. Under SFAS No. 142 the
Company no longer amortizes goodwill.

In 2002, the impact of SFAS No. 142 was
$56.6 million pre-tax, or approximately

18 cents per diluted earnings per share, and
$51.6 million pre-tax, or approximately

16 cents per diluted share on income from
continuing operations.

Interest Expense

Interest expense in 2002 was $22.5 million
down from $55.1 million in 2001. The

$532.6 million or 59.1%, decrease primarily
was due to a reduction in interest rates and
lower average debt levels. The average com-
mercial paper rate was 1.9% versus 4.4% in
2001. Commercial paper borrowings averaged
$908.5 million in 2002, down from $1.1 bil-
lion. Reduced interest rates produced

$22.7 million of the decrease in interest
expense, while lower average debt levels pro-
duced $9.5 million of the decrease.

Provision for Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes as a percent
of income from continuing operations before
taxes was 36.3% in 2002 and 38.7% in 2001.
The 2002 rate reflects the impact of the
divestiture of MMS International (1.2 per-
centage point reduction) and the elimination
of goodwill amortization (1.4 percentage
point reduction).

Income from Continuing Operations
Income from continuing operations was
$572.0 million, a $194.3 million increase over
2001. Excluded from the results of continuing
operations are the results of ComStock and the
juvenile retail publishing business, which were
disposed of during February 2003 and
January 2004, respectively, and are accounted
for as discontinued operations. ComStock was
part of the Financial Services segment. The
juvenile retail publishing business was part of
the McGraw-Hill Education segment.

Income/(Loss) from

Discontinued Operations

Income from discontinued operations for the
year ended December 31, 2002 was $4.8 mil-
lion compared with a loss from discontinued
operations of $(0.7) million for the same
period in 2001. The juvenile retail publishing
business generated revenue of approximately
$82.1 million and $92.0 million, and operating
loss of approximately $1.2 million and

$9.9 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.
ComStock generated revenue of approximately
$65.4 million and $78.9 million, and operating

37




profit of approximately $8.9 million and
$8.9 million in 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Net Income

Net income for the period was $576.8 million,
a 53% increase over the prior year. Diluted
earnings per share were $2.96 versus $1.92 in
the prior year. In 2001, the Company took a
restructuring charge which significantly
impacted net income.

- Segment Review
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McGraw-Hill Education

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Operating Revenue  $2,286.2 $2,275.0 $2,230.2

% Increase 0.5 20 . 127
Operating Profit $ 321.8 $§ 3330 $ 273.3()
% (Decrease) Increase (3.4) 21.8 (11.2)
% Operating Margin 14 15 12

(a) Includes a $62.1 million pre-tax charge for restructur-
ing and asset write-downs.

McGraw-Hill Education is one of the pre-
mier global educational publishers and is the
largest U.S.-owned educational publisher serv-
ing the elementary and high school (el-hi),
college and university, professional, and inter-
national markets. The segment comprises two
operating groups: the School Education Group,
and the Higher Education, Professional, and
International Group (HPI).

In 2003, McGraw-Hill Education revenue was
flat at $2.3 billion compared to the prior year.
Operating profit decreased by $11.2 million to
$321.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2003. Foreign exchange rates favorably
impacted revenue and operating profit growth
by $15.0 million and $7.2 million, respectively.
Excluded from these totals are the results of
the Landoll, Frank Schaffer and related juve-
nile retail publishing businesses (juvenile retail
publishing business), which are reported in dis-
continued operations on the income statement
due to their planned disposition.

Weak economic conditions affected the
School Education Group’s results, which
were offset by growth in HPI. In the kinder-
garten through grade twelve (K-12) market,

cancellations and cutbacks in ordering due to
state budget pressures created by falling tax
receipts curbed opportunities, especially in
open territories. Nonetheless, there were sev-
eral notable successes including a strong
performance in the Texas middle and high
school social studies adoption, a large open
territory adoption for elementary and middle
school math programs in New York City, and
growth in testing. These gains were counter-
balanced by declining sales for several older
supplemental lines and a disappointing perfor-
mance by the elementary social studies pro-
gram in Texas. In HPI growth came from the
college and university education market.

In 2002, McGraw-Hill Education launched
its Global Transformation Project, which will
support the segment’s global growth objectives,
provide technological enhancements to
strengthen the infrastructure of management
information and customer-centric services,
enable process and production improvements
throughout the organization, and position
McGraw-Hill Education to develop advanced
digital products as an emerging growth oppor-
tunity. Expenditures related to the Global
Transformation Project were £38.0 million
and $57.8 million for the periods ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
For the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, $6.9 million and $36.3 million of addi-
tions to technology projects were capitalized
for the Global Transformation Project, respec-
tively and $6.1 million was capitalized as
equipment. An additional $25.0 million and
$21.5 million impacted operating profit as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
The total cost of this project is anticipated to
be $180.0 million.

In 2002, McGraw-Hill Education revenue of
$2.3 billion increased 2.0%. Operating profit
increased by $59.7 million to $333.0 million
for the year ended December 31, 2002. The
softness in operating performance came
from the School Education Group, which
experienced lighter state adoption and open
territory opportunities. The segment’s operat-
ing results include the impact of the account-
ing change pursuant to Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 142 (SFAS No. 142)




“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” The
impact of SFAS No. 142 on this segment was a
favorable $35.5 million.

School Education Group

The School Education Group comprises sev-
eral key brands, including: SRA/McGraw-Hill,
specialized niche basal programs for the ele-
mentary market; Wright Group/McGraw-Hill,
innovative supplementary products for the
early childhood, elementary and remedial
markets; Macmillan/McGraw-Hill, basal
instructional programs for the elementary
market; Glencoe/McGraw-Hill, basal and sup-
plementary products for the secondary market;
CTB/McGraw-Hill, customized and standard-
ized testing materials and scoring services; and
McGraw-Hill Digital Learning, new online
products such as Yearly ProgressPro.

In 2003, the McGraw-Hill School Education
Group’s revenue declined slightly to $1.2 bil-
lion. Economic conditions had a negative
impact on revenue potential throughout the
year, in both the adoption states and open ter-
ritories. The School Education Group’s major
adoption opportunity was in Texas, where
McGraw-Hill programs took a 28% share of
the overall social studies adoption for grades
K:12 owing to a strong performance at the sec-
ondary level that partially offset a lower than
expected showing at the elementary level. In
addition, McGraw-Hill's DLM Express performed
well in the Texas pre-kindergarten adoption.
Large adoptions of Everyday Mathematics and
Impact Mathemaitics by New York City and Open
Court Reading by Anne Arundel County,
Maryland, contributed significantly to open
territory sales. In the testing market, higher
custom contract revenue was driven by the
Colorado, California, Missouri, West Virginia
and Indiana programs.

According to the Association of American
Publishers’ year-to-date statistics through
December 2003, total adoption and open ter-
ritory sales for grades K-12, excluding testing,
increased 2.5%. The 2004 outlook for the
School Education Group and the industry as
a whole will again be influenced strongly by
environmental factors, particularly the state
adoption cycle, the extent of the nation’s

economic recovery, and the availability of state
and federal funding for elementary and high
school education. In the 20 states that adopt
educational materials on a statewide basis, the
2004 adoption cycle offers decreased revenue
due to the mix of disciplines being adopted
and limited adoption opportunities compared
to 2003.

Mathematics is the principal subject up for
adoption in 2004, with five states scheduled to
purchase materials for the elementary and
secondary grades. In addition, South Carolina
will make selective purchases for grades nine
through twelve. Given the limited opportuni-
ties offered by the adoption cycle in other dis-
ciplines, competition for market share in these
states is certain to be intense. However,
McGraw-Hill has led the secondary math mar-
ket for many years and should perform very
well at these grade levels again in 2004. On the
elementary level, the School Education Group
will be competing with two of its programs for
the two leading approaches to math instruction.
Macmillan/McGraw-Hill Mathematics is a new
program that features integrated formative
assessment and professional development.
Everyday Mathematics, which is now the nation’s
leading research-based program, has also been
listed in the adoption states and should aug-
ment the Group’s market share in 2004.

Over the last few years, shortfalls in tax rev-
enues have required many state and local gov-
ernments to curtail spending for elementary
through high school education. Budgeted
reductions have often been compounded by
additional cuts to address deficit situations.
As aresult purchases have been postponed or
scaled back in districts across the adoption and
open territory states. However, there are indi-
cations that the outlook for funding is improv-
ing. In November, the National Conference of
State Legislatures (NCSL), reported that only
10 states are facing budget deficits in fiscal
year 2004, which will run through June 30 in
most states, compared to 31 states that had
budget deficits at the same point in fiscal year
2003. According to the NCSL survey, 21 states
realized higher revenues than expected,

16 states were running below forecast, and 13
were on target with projections. Furthermore,
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the budget gap in all states was significantly
lower than that reported at the same time last
year. If this favorable trend holds through the
second quarter of 2004, when most states final-
ize their fiscal year 2005 budgets, increased
appropriations may become available prior to
the beginning of the new school year.

In addition to the potential for improved
state and local funding, the Company expects
additional federal funding in the School
Education Group’s marketplace during 2004.
The No Child Left Behind Act (NCLB), which
was signed into law in January 2002, established
new testing and performance requirements for
all states, and provided for additional federal
support. By the end of 2003, the states had
received all of their first-year allocations and
most of their second-year allocations under the
Reading First initiative. Much of this money
will reach local school districts in the first half
of 2004. With research-based programs such as
Open Court Reading, Reading Mastery and
Breakthrough to Literacy that closely match the
federal guidelines, McGraw-Hill is very well-
positioned in this market. Although some
Reading First funds are likely to be substituted
for state or local funds, the Company antici-
pates that the federal reading initiative will
have an incremental effect on business oppor-
tunities during 2004 and will contribute signif-
icantly to growth.

The McGraw-Hill School Education Group
holds strong positions in both the custom
testing market and the market for “shelf” or
standardized testing materials. In 2004, the
McGraw-Hill School Education Group will
focus on winning additional custom contracts
in key states, as well as investing in the technol-
ogy necessary for the continuing development
of summative and formative assessment prod-
ucts that can be offered online. With the
passage of NCLB, which requires states to
demonstrate adequate yearly progress through
the use of annual reading and math tests in
grades three through eight, the Group is well
positioned to grow in the summative testing
market again in 2004. The growth rate is diffi-
cult to predict, however, as federal monies may
simply replace reduced state budget spending.

Although this will be the lightest K12 adop-
tion calendar for the decade, the Company
expects to outperform the industry in 2004
based on strength in math, success in captur-
ing Reading First dollars, growth in testing,
and the recovery of supplemental sales as the
general economy improves. The decline in ele-
mentary and high school market potential in
2004 is due to the soft adoption calendar; the
long-term growth opportunities in this market
remain solid. The elementary through high
school market is expected to rebound dramati-
cally in 2005, the first of several good growth
years for the business.

In 2002, McGraw-Hill School Education
Group revenue declined slightly to $1.2 bil-
lion. The Group was negatively impacted by
the change in adoption and open territory
potential within key states. In 2001, significant
opportunities included basal reading adop-
tions in Indiana, Alabama, North Carolina and
Tennessee, as well as reading and literature
adoptions in Texas. By contrast, 2002 was pro-
jected as a lighter adoption year with reduced
opportunities in North Carolina and Texas.
Macmillan/McGraw-Hill Reading did not meet
expectations in Oklahoma or Florida but
Open Court Reading performed very well in
California and in the open territories, winning
more than 30% of the elementary reading
adoption in California and a major sale in
Detroit. Nationally, the Group led all competi-
tion in K-12 science, the largest adoption oppor-
tunity in 2002. Most significantly, McGraw-Hill
science products achieved a 40% share of the
high-enroliment middle school science market
in Texas. Everyday Mathematics, the Group’s
innovative K-6 program, also saw growth in sales.

According to the Association of American
Publishers’ statistics for the year 2002, total
K-12 adoption and open territory sales for the
industry, excluding testing, decreased by 5%.
The decline was driven by economic conditions.
Facing deficits when their tax revenues fell short
of projections, 33 states had to revise their
budgets downward during the first half of 2002,
and 17% of those states made some cuts in-their
K12 spending, according to the NCSL. The
State of Virginia cancelled its reading adoption,
but did make some discretionary purchases.




In 2002, sales of supplemental products
were down across the industry. A large portion
of supplemental sales came from small orders
from individual teachers using classroom or
school discretionary funds to meet the needs
of their particular students. At many schools
these discretionary funds were cut back in the
fall of 2002 as a result of reductions in state
budgets. In the case of reading, the largest sup-
plemental curriculum area, sales were also
affected by delays in the release of Reading
First funds and guidelines, which caused
uncertainty regarding the upcoming year. The
McGraw-Hill School Education Group’s
Jamestown remedial reading product was one
bright spot in the supplemental product area
in 2002. This product meets a critical need at
the secondary and postsecondary levels.

In 2002, McGraw-Hill's summative test prod-
ucts performed well. New contracts in
California, West Virginia and Washington,
D.C. added to revenue growth. Higher revenue
from Indiana, New York, Missouri, New Mexico
and Tennessee also generated summative test-
ing product growth. In particular, the California
Star program, which utilizes McGraw-Hill’s
CAT/6, a standardized achievement test, pro-
vided a continuous market for ancillary prod-
ucts such as teachers’ guides.

Higher Education, Professional and
International Group

The Higher Education, Professional and
International Group (HPI) serves the college,
professional, international and adult educa-
tion markets. In 2003, HPI revenue increased
by $16.1 million to $1.1 billion.

The results reflect the growth in domestic
and international sales of higher education /
titles, offset by continued weakness in certain
professional titles. Growth in the higher educa-
tion market was driven by continued enroll-
ment increases but was tempered by state
cutbacks resulting in a reduction in the num-
ber of courses on state campuses. In 2003, the
sales of Humanities, Social Sciences and
Languages and Science, Engineering and
Mathematics imprints increased. Key titles
contributing to vear-to-date sales increases
include: Lucas, The Art of Public Speaking, 8/e;

Shier, Holes Human Anatomy & Physiology, 10/ e;
Saladin, Anatomy and Physiology, 3/ e; Mader,
Biology, 8/e; Silberberg, Chemistry: The
Molecular Nature of Matter And Change, 3/e;
Libby, Financial Accounting, 4/e; Garrison,
Managerial Accounting, 10/e; Santrock, Life-
Span Development, 9/ e; Brinkley, American
History: A Survey, 11/e; Shier, Hole’s Essentials
of Human AGR, 8/e.

Professional products declined as the com-
puter and technology imprints were weak
globally. In 2002, professional products also
benefited from the publication of The
Encyclopedia of Science and Technology, 9/ e, with
strong first year sales that did not repeat in 2003.

Higher education imprints performed well
internationally particularly in Latin America,
Canada and Europe, where the local higher
education publishing programs added to the
strong U.S. product base. The benefit antici-
pated as a result of the elimination of the
13th grade in Canada did not materialize.

The HPI Group is expecting revenue to grow
in 2004. While growth is projected in all areas,
the higher education and medical markets are
expected to perform well with double digit
increases internationally.

In 2004, growth is expected to occur in all
three disciplines in Higher Education:
Business and Economics; Humanities, Social
Science and Languages; and Science,
Engineering and Mathematics. Leading the
group in 2004 is Business and Econormics,
where several major revisions are expected
to be particularly strong. Major titles include
McConnell and Brue, Economics, 16/ e; Nickels,
Understanding Business, 7/e; and Larson,
Fundamental Accounting Principles, 17/e.In
addition, strong performance in front list
titles for both Humanities, Social Science and
Languages and Science, Engineering and
Mathematics are expected to contribute to
growth. These increases will be slightly offset
by state funding issues that have resulted in
state colleges limiting enrollment, eliminating
certain classes and increasing tuition despite
continued strong demand for higher
education. The college market enroliment is
expected to increase 1%-2% per year through
2006, while the market size is expected to grow
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about 2%-3% annually. The Company antici-
pates that its college product sales will out-
perform the industry. With higher education
enrollment overseas growing faster than in the
U.S., the Company anticipates solid growth
abroad in 2004.

Recognizing that technology continues to be
the key trend in higher education for course
management and content delivery, HPI will
aggressively pursue a variety of e-initiatives,
including e-books, e-learning, and online fac-
ulty training and support.

Continued softness in the technology sector
will limit professional product growth despite
a more positive outlook for Trade and Medical
products. Professional product sales will con-
tinue to grow in the medical area, due to
expansion from print to online delivery through
the AccessMedicine portal. In addition, next year
the sixteenth edition of Harrisons Principles of
Internal Medicine, the world's best-selling medical
text, will be released.

In 2002, revenue for HPI grew 7.0% to
$1.1 billion. McGraw-Hill Higher Education
provided most of the growth both domestically
and internationally. All major imprints experi-
enced growth, with Science, Engineering and
Mathematics the strongest. The Group gained
market share in the Science, Engineering and
Mathematics and the Business and Economics
imprints. Some of the more important titles
included McConnell and Brue, Economics, 15/ ¢e;
Nickels, Understanding Business, 6/¢€; Raven,
Biology, 6/¢; Shier, Holes Human AGE, 9/¢;
Garrison, Managerial Accounting, 10/e; Mader,
Inguiry into Life, 10/e; and Kerin, Marketing, 7/e.

The downturn in the equity markets in 2002
had an unfavorable impact on the business,
investing, and finance professional publishing
programs. In addition, the successful release
of Harrison’s Principles of Internal Medicine, 15/ ¢,
in the first quarter of 2001 was not repeated in
2002. The performance of the computing
titles was unfavorably affected by the contin-
ued decline in information technology spend-
ing and the reduction in PC sales. These
trends were experienced both domestically
and internationally. The change to a “credit
card only” policy at the beginning of 2002 in
the direct marketing channel depressed 2002

revenue but increased margins. The domestic
medical marketplace stabilized after two years
of disruption, and a strong interest in robotics
in consumer and educational markets drove
demand for books on this subject and for inno-
vative build-your-own educational kits. Trade
and reference products performed well, espe-
cially in academic markets such as foreign lan-
guages, dictionaries and test preparation.
Higher Education imprints performed well
internationally, particularly in Latin America,
Canada and Europe. In addition, Canada
increased revenue by $3.7 million, partially
benefiting from the elimination of the 13th
grade, which took effect in 2003. In anticipa-
tion of this change, early enrollments in
colleges and universities grew in 2002, Profes-
sional titles remained soft in all regions.

Financial Services

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Operating Revenue ~ $1,769.1 $1,555.7 $1,398.3
% Increase 13.7 11.3 16.0
Operating Profit $ 667.6 $ 560.8@§ 425.9(0)
% Increase 19.0 31.7 11.2
% Operating Margin 38 36 30

(a) Includes $14.5 million pre-tax loss on the sale of

MMS International.

(b) Includes a $43.1 million pre-tax charge for restructur-
ing and asset write-downs, an $8.8 million pre-tax gain on
the sale of DRI and a $22.8 million pre-tax charge for the

write-down of certain assets, the shutdown of the Blue Lisi
and the contribution of Rational Investors to mPower.com.

The Financial Services segment operates
under the Standard & Poor’s brand as one
reporting unit and provides credit ratings, eval-
uation services and analyses globally on corpo-
rations, financial institutions, securitized and
project financings and local, state and sover-
eign governments. Financial Services provides
a wide range of analytical and data services for
investment managers and investment advisors
globally. Standard & Poor’s is also a leading
provider of valuation and consulting services.

In 2003, the Financial Services’ segment
achieved double-digit revenue and operating
profit growth. Revenue increased 13.7% to
$1.8 billion and operating profit increased
19.0% to $667.6 million over 2002. The growth
was primarily due to the performance of




structured finance ratings, which contributed
$105.7 million to the growth in revenue and
corporate and infrastructure ratings which
contributed $60.9 million to the growth in
revenue of the segment. Operating margin
increased to 38% from 36% in 2002.

In 2003, favorable foreign exchange rates
contributed $89.3 million and $14.2 million,
respectively, to revenue and operating profit
growth. International revenue for the Financial
Services segment grew by 24.8% and represents
28.8% of the total revenue for the segment.

In February 2003, ComStock was disposed
of, and this divestiture is reflected as a discon-
tinued operation. In September 2002, the
Financial Services segment divested MMS
International, which resulted in a pre-tax loss
of $14.5 million and an after-tax benefit of
$2.0 million, 1 cent per diluted share. The vari-
ance between the pre-tax loss on the sale of
MMS International and the after-tax benefit is
the result of previous baok write-downs and
the inability of the Company to take a tax ben-
efit for the write-downs until the unit was sold.
The impact on the effective tax rate for the
year ended December 31, 2002 from this trans-
action is a reduction of 1.2 percentage points.
MMS International accounted for a 1.9%
decrease in revenue and a negligible decrease
in operating profitin 2003 versus 2002.

Standard & Poor’s ratings operate in four
areas: corporate and government ratings (cor-
porate and infrastructure, financial services,
public finance, sovereigns and performance
evaluation services), structured finance rat-
ings, securities services and risk solutions.
Securities services, aggregates information-
based offerings serving the capital markets
including securities classifications, securities
information and securities evaluations. Risk
solutions focuses on delivering quantitative
tools and analytics, customized services and
training to the credit risk management market.

In 2003, the Financial Services segment’s
increased revenue and operating profit were
due primarily to the performance of structured
finance and corporate and infrastructure
ratings, both domestically and internationally,
which represented approximately 78.1% of the
growth in revenue. In structured finance, the

strong growth was primarily driven by U.S. resi-
dential mortgage-backed securities issuance
that benefited from the flood of refinancing
activity resulting from low interest rates.
According to Harrison Scott Publications, total
U.S. structured finance new issue dollar vol-
ume increased 35.2%, driven by residential
mortgage-backed securities issuance, which
grew 49.2%. U.S. corporate issuance grew
19.7%, driven primarily by strong high yield
issuance resulting from refinancing of existing
debt as well as the need to fund new invest-
ment. New issue dollar volume in the U.S. mar-
ket overall was up 22.6% due in large part to
the return of investor confidence, improving
credit quality, low interest rates (especially
mortgage rates) and fiscal challenges experi-
enced by many state and local governments. In
Europe, new issue dollar volume rose 54.3%,
according to Securities Data and Harrison
Scott Publications. The growth in international
issuance is due primarily to structured finance,
as securitization is increasingly recognized as a
favorable funding source and risk management
tool. Corporate issuance in Europe also experi-
enced robust growth due to low interest rates
and improving economic conditions.

Bank loan ratings, counterparty credit rat-
ings and global infrastructure ratings all expe-
rienced higher growth rates than traditional
ratings products.

Standard & Poor's is also a leading provider
of data, analysis and independent investment
advice and recommendations. The results for
these product lines were mixed as were the
results for the overall financial services industry,
which experienced adverse market conditions
and profit pressures during most of the first half
of 2003, but began to show modest improve-
ment during the second half of the year. Fund
ratings, index-related products and services as
well as company specific information products
continued to grow, despite the general decline
in demand for information products, especially
those related to the retail brokerage sector.

Revenue related to Standard & Poor’s
indices increased as assets under management
for Exchange-Traded Funds rose to $79.8 bil-
lion at December 31, 2003 from $63.2 billion
at December 31, 2002.
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Valuations for financial and tax reporting,
financial modeling, assistance regarding capi-
tal usage and the management of intellectual
property assets in 2003 were negatively
impacted by the low level of merger and acqui-
sition activity. However revenue increased from
the sale of non-valuation services, such as liti-
gation support and real estate services.
According to the Bloomberg Mergers and
Acquisitions Database, as of December 2003
the dollar volume of announced deals involv-
ing a U.S. company increased 16.1% and the
number of deals increased 10.2%, as compared
to 2002.

In 2004, Standard & Poor’s expects contin-
ued top and bottom line growth as market
conditions in the financial services sector con-
tinue to improve overall in line with the eco-
nomic recovery. International growth will
remain robust due to the favorable trends of
securitizatton, disintermediation and privati-
zation, and the Company will benefit from
opportunities arising from the need for more
independent and objective research. The
Company expects growth in 2004 despite
declines projected in residential mortgage-
backed securities issuance, attributable to
potentially rising mortgage rates later in 2004.

In 2004, U.S. corporate issuance growth
will primarily come from investment grade
issuance that will benefit from the economic
recovery and low rates. High-yield issuance
will also grow modestly due to tightening
interest rate spreads as well as to fund business
investments. The Company expects debt
issuance to grow in order to meet new invest-
ment demands as economic growth begins
to work through some of the excess capacity
in the economy as well as to support increased
merger and acquisition activity. In public
finance there may be a decline in refinanc-
ings, but pressure on state and municipal
budgets could lead to an increase in new
money issuance.

The securitization market has grown signifi-
cantly over the last decade in the United States,
Europe and Asia. In the United States, overall
mortgage-backed securities volume is expected
to decline as mortgage interest rates rise.

Issuance of both asset-backed securities and
collateralized debt obligations is expected to
increase as the economy, consumer spending
and investor confidence grow and the quantity
and quality of underlying transaction collat-
eral improves.

Standard & Poor’s expects the European
Monetary Union to continue to facilitate disin-
termediation as borrowers obtain increasingly
more financing through the public debt
markets rather than banks. This trend and the
anticipated economic recovery should lead to
continued growth in 2004. In the Asia Pacific
region, corporate and structured finance rat-
ings are expected to perform well. Japan will
continue to see growth in collateralized debt
obligations as banks use these instruments to
manage risk.

In 2004, the Financial Services segment
anticipates strong growth in bank loan ratings,
counterparty credit ratings and global infra-
structure ratings, due to continued market
demand for these products.

On April 28, 2003, ten large investment
banks entered into an agreement with the SEC,
the NYSE, the NASD, and the New York State
Auorney General to settle claims of conflicts of
interest relating to equity research. The settle-
ment includes the requirement that the firms
spend $43%2.5 million over a five-vear period
to provide a minimum of three sources of
independent equity research to their customers.
Under the terms of the settlement, each firm is
required to spend a minimum amount for this
research ranging from $1.5 million to $15 mil-
lion per year. The global research settlement
was finalized on October 31, 2003 and all firms
are required to be in compliance within
270 days or by August 1, 2004. The settlement
firms have an immediate need to satisfy the
requirements of the settlement. As a leading
provider of independent equity research,
Standard & Poor’s believes that it is uniquely
positioned to capitalize on this opportunity.

In 2004, the Financial Services segment
foresees some improvement in the market
environment for its valuation and consulting
products as merger and acquisition activity
begins to rebound.




In 2002, the Financial Services segment
revenue increased 11.3% benefiting from
structured finance ratings, contributing
$72.1 million to the growth in revenue, the
acquisition of Corporate Value Consulting
(CVC) contributing $58.3 million incremental
revenue growth and corporate and govern-
ment ratings contributing $30.4 million to the
growth in revenue of the segment. Operating
profit in 2002 increased by 31.7% compared to
2001. Operating margin increased to 36.0%
from 30.5% in 2001.

In September 2002, the Financial Services
segment divested MMS International in order
to sharpen its focus on serving investment man-
agers and investment advisors. This divestiture
resulted in a pre-tax loss of $14.5 million and an
after-tax benefit of $2.0 million, 1 cent per
diluted share. The variance between the pre-tax
loss on the sale of MMS International and the
after-tax benefit is the result of previous book
write-downs and the inability of the Company to
take a tax benefit for the write-downs until the
unit was sold. The impact on the effective tax
rate for the year from this transaction is a reduc-
tion of 1.2 percentage points.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the segment
took a restructuring and asset impairment
charge of $43.1 million pre-tax. The bulk of
the restructuring charge comes from write-
downs of intangible assets related to Standard
& Poor’s decision to dispose of certain non-
strategic properties in the investment services
area. In early May 2001, DRI was divested,
which resulted in an $8.8 million pre-tax gain
($26.3 million after-tax, 13 cents per diluted
share). The variance between the pre-tax gain
recognized on the sale of DRI of $8.8 million
and the after-tax benefit of $26.3 million is the
result of previous book write-downs and the
inability of the Company to take a tax benefit
for the write-downs until the unit was sold. The
impact on the effective tax rate for 2001 of this
transaction was a reduction of 3.4 percentage
points. Also included in operating profit of
2001 is the write-down of certain assets, the
shutdown of the Blue List and the contribution
of Rational Investors to mPower.com. The total
charge for these items was $22.8 million

pre-tax ($21.9 million after-tax, 11 cents per
diluted share). The impact on the effective tax
rate for 2001 of these transactions was an
increase of 1.8 percentage points due to the
inability of the Company to take a benefit for
these write-downs.

The impact of the accounting change under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142 (SFAS No. 142), “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” was a contribution of
$13.0 million to operating profit.

In 2002, revenues for the Financial Services
segment grew on the strength of the structured
finance market due primarily to the strength
of the mortgage-backed securities sector. The
asset- and mortgage-backed markets continued
to benefit from the series of interest rate reduc-
tions by the Federal Reserve. Asset-backed
dollar volume issuance rose 16%, while
mortgage-backed dollar volume issuance rose
23%, aecording to Securities Data Corporation.
Revenue from corporate and government
ratings grew at a more modest rate due to a
36% issuance decline in the corporate sector,
which reflected the weak economic environ-
ment as well as the accounting irregularities
that shook investor confidence. High-yield
dollar volume issuance, also down by 36% for
the year, was attributable to the flight to qual-
ity and mistrust of corporate management.
U.S. municipal issuance was up 25% due to
the favorable interest rate environment which
drove refinancing and reduced tax receipts,
which increased the need for financing for
general expenditures, including education. In
total, U.S. new issue dollar volume was off 7%
and unit volume was off 2% for 2002, accord-
ing to Securities Data Corporation. In Europe,
new issue dollar volume fell 12%, but unit vol-
ume increased 5% for 2002 according to
Bondware. The negative economic environ-
ment impacted European issuance, primarily
in the corporate and financial services sectors.

Bank loan ratings, ratings evaluation serv-
ices and counterparty risk ratings showed
double-digit growth in revenue globally for
2002. Asset-backed and mortgage-backed
issuance in the United States, Asia and Europe
contributed to the growth in the Financial
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Services segment. The segment also experi-
enced increased demand for modeling and
related analytic tools and credit training in 2002.

Standard & Poor’s is a lcading provider of
data, analysis and independent investment
advice and recommendations. The financial
services industry experienced adverse market
conditions in 2002 and profit pressures faced
by financial services firms led to cost reduc-
tions and layoffs at these firms. These conditions
were the result of declining merger and acqui-
sition transactions as well as general market
declines as the S&P 500 declined for the third
straight year. These market conditions in 2002
resulted in decreased demand for information
products and services. Retail brokerage,
Internet redistribution and foreign exchange
markets remained soft throughout the year.

On August 31, 2001, Standard & Poor’s
acquired CVC from PricewaterhouseCoopers.
This acquisition expanded Standard & Poor’s
capabilities to provide valuation and consulting
services. CVC’s primary services are valuations
for financial and tax reporting, financial mod-
eling, assistance regarding capital usage and
the management of intellectual property assets.
The acquisition contributed $58.3 million, or
37.0%, to the growth in revenue of the
Financial Services segment in 2002. CVC was
negatively impacted in 2002 by the reduced
level of merger and acquisition activity.
According to Bloomberg Mergers and
Acquisitions Database, as of December 31,
2002, the dollar volume and the number of
announced deals involving a U.S. company
declined 40% and 21%, respectively, as com-
pared with the year ended December 31, 2001.

Assets of both the S&P Depositary Receipts
(SPDRs) traded on the American Stock
Exchange and the Barclays Global Investors-
sponsored iShares increased in 2002,
Exchange-Traded Funds based on S&P indices
grew to $63.2 billion, up 30% over 2001.
Demand for advice on portfolio strategies
based on S&P’s STARS stock recommenda-
tions, fund evaluations, asset allocation and
other proprietary investment techniques
declined in 2002.

Information and Media Services

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Operating Revenue $772.6 $809.5 $846.1
% Decrease (4.6) (4.8) (16.0)
Operating Profit $109.8 $118.0 $ 65.0@
% (Decrease) Increase (7.0) 81.6 (69.5)
% Operating Margin 14 15 8

(a) Includes a one-time charge of $34.9 million pre-tax
for restructuring and asset write-down.

The Information and Media Services
segment comprises two operating groups
that include business and professional media
offering information, insight and analysis:
the Business-to-Business Group (comprising
brands including BusinessWeek, McGraw-Hill
Construction, Platts, Aviation Week, and
Healthcare Information) and the
Broadcasting Group.

Information and Media Services segment
revenue decreased $36.9 million, or 4.6%, in
2003. Operating profit decreased $8.2 million,
or 7.0%, to $109.8 million in 2003. Revenue
declined at the Business-to-Business Group by
4.4% and at the Broadcasting Group by 5.7%.
The continued soft advertising market nega-
tively impacted both groups.

In 2004, the economy is expected to improve
and with it the advertising market. Additionally,
2004 is a political advertising year, which will
benefit the Broadcasting stations.

The Information and Media Services seg-
ment revenue declined 4.3% to $809.5 million
in 2002 and operating profitincreased 81.6%
to $118.0 million. In the fourth quarter 2001,
the segment took a charge of $34.9 million
pre-tax for restructuring and asset write-downs.
Most of this charge relates to write-downs of
certain e-commerce investments at McGraw-
Hill Construction and staff reductions across
the segment. On September 4, 2001, Platts
purchased Financial Times Energy (FT Energy),
a leading provider of energy information,
research and consulting services. FT Energy
contributed $28.2 million of incremental rev-
enue to the Information and Media Services
segment in 2002. During 2002, the segment




reduced 400 positions, including those con-
templated by the restructuring in the fourth
quarter of 2001, in excess of 10% of total posi-
tions. The operating results of the segment
reflect the weak advertising market experi-
enced in 2002 and cost containment activities.
The change in accounting pursuant to SFAS
No. 142 contributed $3.1 million to operating
profit in 2002,

Business-to-Business Group

In 2003, the economy and business environ-
ment continued to be unfavorable. Revenues
declined 4.4% to $669.6 million for the
Business-to-Business Group.

In 2003, BusinessWeek’s North American
edition revenue declined for a third consecu-
tive year and according to the Publishers
Information Bureau advertising pages were
down 9%. Weakness was experienced in the
North American and International editions
related to international advertisers, particu-
larly European advertisers, due to economic
and political issues and the SARS outbreak.
The BusinessWeek demographic editions that
were discontinued in the third quarter of 2002,
negatively impacted the sales of the Business-
to-Business Group.

As of November 2003, total U.S. construc-
tion starts increased 3% versus the prior year,
largely due to the continued strength in single
family housing. However, U.S. non-residential
construction decreased 3% versus the prior
vear due to the weakness in commercial prop-
erty types such as offices, healthcare facilities
and warehouses. Sales to building product
manufacturers, construction contractors and
service providers declined due to the weak
non-residential building sector. The discontin-
uation of Dodge SCAN in the latter part of
2002 also created a negative revenue compari-
son, but improved operating margins.
Competitive pressures and the weak economy
have reduced advertising page yields and clas-
sified pages for the construction publications,
however market share continued to grow. In
2003, the Business-to-Business Group bene-
fited from the introduction of the McGraw-Hill

Construction Network, a new web-based
integrated product, which was introduced in
the third quarter of 2003.

In 2003, U.S. power markets, specifically
electricity and natural gas, continued to be
negatively impacted by the fallout from Enron.

During 2003, the aviation industry
remained in economic turmoil due to contin-
ued weakness in traffic, labor issues and
security demands. The softness in the aviation
industry has resulted in decreased advertising
pages. There were three fewer air shows in
2003 compared to 2002. The Singapore Air
Show which occurred in the first quarter of
2002 did not occur in 2003. Due to political
tensions, the Paris Air Show was a much
smaller show than previous Paris events.

The healthcare industry continues to be
weak. Fewer drug approvals have been the
largest issue during the last several years.
Industry-wide medical advertising pages
declined in 2003.

During 2003, the Business-to-Business
Group continued to take cost containment
actions to soften the impact of reduced adver-
tising revenue. These costs containment
actions will continue in 2004.

In 2004, the Business-to-Business Group
anticipates an up tick in the advertising market
as the economy recovers. Advertising growth
for the business publications is dependent on a
recovery in technology and financial services
driven by strong corporate earnings in these
and other sectors of the economy.

In 2004, the BusinessWeek North American
rate base will remain constant. Advertising
volume is expected to increase year-to-year.
Demand for construction information is
expected to grow in 2004 as the economy
improves. The McGraw-Hill Construction
Network is expected to continue gaining
momentum. In energy, the marketplace
will be characterized by high volatility and
uncertainty, with continuing regulation and
integration of regional and global markets.
Some specific categories within the energy
market, like information and trading services,
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are expected to increase as the U.S. power
markets continue to stabilize. The aerospace
advertising market is expected to recover
slowly in 2004. Increased advertising volume
will be further supported by four additional
air shows to be held in 2004, the largest of
which will be held in Singapore. Opportunities
for growth in 2004 also exist in the areas of
homeland security defense and new business
intelligence services. The pharmaceutical
market is expected to remain focused on
direct-to-consumer advertising, an area in
which the Business-to-Business Group does
not participate. )

In 2002, the economy and business envi-
ronment was unfavorable. Revenues declined
5.5% to $700.1 million from 2001 for the
Business-to-Business Group.

BusinessWeek's North American edition rev-
enue declined for a second consecutive year in
2002. Advertising spending was impacted by
the weak economy and the related decline in
business-to-business technology advertising.
Branding money continued to decline in 2002.
According to the Publishers Information
Bureau, BusinessWeek’s North American adver-
tising pages declined 12.1% in 2002, with one
less issue but the same number of issues for
revenue recognition purposes. The decline in
advertising pages is consistent with that experi-
enced by BusinessWeek's major competitors.

The rate of expansion in the construction
industry slowed during 2002. The value of new
construction starts increased 1% to $498.7 bil-
lion, after a 5% gain in 2001 and an 8% aver-
age growth during the previous ten years.
Residential building in 2002 continued to be
robust, rising 12%, while public works construc-
tion advanced 4%. However, non-residential
building fell 10% due to the weakness for the
commercial property types, such as offices,
hotels and warehouses. »

The construction related advertising market
was soft during 2002, resulting in reduced
advertising pages in ENR magazine. Both ENR
and Architectural Record gained market share in
2002, according to Inquiry Management

Systems. During 2002, the Business-to-Business
Group divested CAP, a non-core business,
resulting in a reduction of revenue of $2.4 mil-
lion, with no significant impact on operating
profit. Also in 2002, Dodge SCAN, an outdated
product line, was discontinued. Demand
increased for Dodge electronic project lead
manager, an electronic project news product,
and the digital plans and specifications prod-
uct. Increased demand for Sweets Residential
products helped offset lower Sweets File sales
both domestically and in Canada.

In September 2001, Platts acquired FT
Energy from Pearson plc. FT Energy con-
tributed $28.2 million of incremental revenue
to the Business-to-Business Group for 2002.

Aviation advertising volumes declined in
2002 as the commercial airline industry
remained in turmoil. Healthcare advertising
declined due to the general economic down-
turn, fewer drugs approved in 2002 versus
2001 and an increase in direct-to-consumer
advertising by the pharmaceutical industry.

Broadcasting

The Broadcasting Group operates four televi-
sion stations, all ABC affiliates: VHF stations
in Denver, Indianapolis and San Diego and a
UHEF station in Bakersfield, California. In
2003, the Group’s revenue decreased by 5.7%
to $103.0 million. While the airing of the
Super Bowl during the first quarter of 2003
contributed positively to performance, its ben-
efit could not offset the lack of political adver-
tising. The weak ratings position of the ABC
network, preemptions caused by war coverage
and the general economic malaise also nega-
tively impacted the performance of the sta-
tions. The services and consumer products
categories of advertisers contributed to growth
while the retailing, automotive and leisure
time categories remained weak. Excluding
political advertising, advertising time sales fell
1.9% from 2002. National advertising time
sales excluding political advertising advanced,
while local advertising time sales excluding
political advertising declined.




Broadcasting remains an event driven busi-
ness and will benefit from the 2004 presiden-
tial campaign. This benefit will be offset by
the loss of the Super Bow! and the negative
impact of the Olympics which wiil be aired by
NBC. In 2004 stations will continue their cost
containment initiatives and continue to refine
and promote their local brands to improve rat-
ings in local newscasts and other programming.

Starting in the fourth quarter of 2004, the
network compensation agreements with ABC
will begin to expire. The current favorable terms
of these contracts are not expected to recur.

In 2002 the Group’s revenue increased by
3.6% to $109.4 million, as a result of political
advertising. Weaker advertiser demand experi-
enced across the entire broadcasting industry,
due to the economic downturn, dampened the
benefit of the increase in political advertising.
In addition, during 2002, NBC affiliated sta-
tions benefited from the broadcast of the
Winter Olympics which garnered advertising
funds that would have been spent on other tel-
evision stations. The Group softened the
impact of lower revenue growth through cost
reduction efforts including the implementa-
tion of technology that allowed the stations to
streamline local news production. The stations
finished the year with operating expenses
below 1993 levels, and with advertising time
sales up 4.2% over 2001. Excluding political
advertising, advertising time sales fell 4.0%
from 2001. National advertising time sales
excluding political advertising advanced, while
local advertising time sales excluding political
advertising declined.

In 2002, the Denver station renegotiated
its contract with Comcast, allowing for cable
retransmission of its signal plus a new cable
24 hour news channel. In addition, the
Bakersfield, California station negotiated an
agreement with Time Warner Cable for an
evening cable news channel. All of the stations
now have cable news channels, allowing them
to further leverage their news content.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

(in millions) 2003 2002
Working Capital $ 2624 $(101.0)
Total Debt $ 263 § 5783
Gross Accounts Receivable $1,196.3 $1,2329
% (Decrease) 3.0) (6.3)
Inventories — Net $ 301.2 $ 3608
% (Decrease) (16.5) (10.4)

Investment in
Prepublication Costs
% (Decrease)

$ 218.0 § 2493
(12.6) (15.4)

Purchase of Property
and Equipment
% Increase (Decrease)

$ 1150 & 700
64.3  (40.1)

The Company continues to maintain a
strong financial position. The Company’s pri-
mary source of funds for operations is cash
generated by operating activities. The Company’s
core businesses have been strong cash genera-
tors. Debt financing is typically used for acqui-
sitions and as a result of seasonality. The
Company’s income and consequently cash pro-
vided from operations during the year are sig-
nificantly impacted by the seasonality of
businesses, particularly educational publish-
ing. The first quarter is the smallest, account-
ing for 17% of revenue and only 6% of income
from continuing operations in 2003. The third
quarter is the largest, accounting for 83% of
revenue and generating over 42% of 2003
annual income from continuing operations.
This seasonality also impacts cash flow and
related borrowing patterns. The Company typ-
ically increases its borrowing through the
beginning of the third quarter and generates
cash over the balance of the year.

Cash and cash equivalents increased
$637:4 million in 2003 and increased $4.7 mil-
lion in 2002. The Company’s subsidiaries
maintain cash balances at several financial
institutions located throughout the world.
These cash balances are subject to normal cur-
rency exchange fluctuations. At December 31,
2003 and 2002 the Company’s overseas cash
balances total $177.8 million and $99.0 mil-
lion, respectively. Repatriation of certain non-
U.S. cash balances to the U.S. could have
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adverse tax consequences, however cash held
outside the U.S. is anticipated to be utilized to
fund international cash requirements. The
Company expects to reinvest this cash outside
of the United States because a significant por-
tion of the Company's opportunities for growth
in the coming years will be abroad. Major fac-
tors affecting the change in cash included a
21.0% increase in cash provided by operations
and proceeds from the disposition of the
Company’s equity investment in Rock-McGraw,
Inc. and ComStock.

Cash flow from operations more than cov-
ered dividends, investment in publishing pro-
grams, capital expenditures, repurchases of
shares and additions to technology projects
and permitted the Company to reduce out-
standing debt. In 2004, cash on hand, cash
flow from operations and existing credit facili-
ties are expected to be sufficient to cover any
additional operating and recurring cash needs
(dividends, investment in publishing programs,
capital expenditures, and expected stock
repurchases) into the foreseeable future.

The Company’s working capital was
$262.4 million at December 31, 2003, compared
with negative working capital of $101.0 million
at the end of 2002. The change reflects
increases in cash and cash equivalents and the
impact of the disposition of the Company’s
equity investment in Rock-McGraw, Inc. which
offset reductions in accounts receivable, inven-
tories and other current assets.

Cash Flow
Operating Activities: Cash flow from opera-
tions were $1.4 billion for 2003, as compared
to $1.1 billion in 2002. The increase in cash
provided by operating activities primarily
relates to the performance of the businesses,
the dividend from Rock-McGraw, Inc. and the
increase in taxes payable. Also contributing to
cash provided from operating activities is
effective inventory and accounts receivable
management and the increase in unearned
revenue, primarily attributable to the
Financial Services ratings products.

Accounts receivable {before reserves)
decreased $36.6 million, or 3.0%, even with

an ongoing revenue increase of 4.0%. This
decrease compares with a decrease of $82.3 mil-
lion in 2002. The year-to-year decrease in 2003
and 2002 was primarily due to improved col-
lection processes for accounts receivable.
Number of days sales outstanding decreased
eight days in 2003, 11 days in 2002 and four
days in 2001. Total inventories declined by
16.5% in 2003 from the prior year to

$301.2 million and declined by 10.4% in 2002
to $360.8 million, as the Company improves its
inventory management.

Income taxes payable increased $164.9 mil-
lion over the prior year. Included in income
taxes payable are taxes relating to the sale of
the Company’s 45% equity investment in Rock-
McGraw, Inc.

Included in other current liabilities at
December 31, 2002 is the offset of current assets
to previously established reserves for the final
closedown of the former Continuing
Educational Center, resulting in no cash or
income statement impact.

In 2002, amortization of goodwill and intan-
gibles decreased as a result of the implementa-
tion of SFAS No. 142.

In 2001, cash provided by operating activi-
ties of $1.1 billion include $159.0 million relat-
ing to restructuring and assets write-downs.

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company
announced a worldwide restructuring program
that includes the exiting of certain businesses,
product lines and markets in each of its operat-
ing segments. $123.0 million of the restructur-
ing expenses were classified as operating related
expenses on the Consolidated Statement of
Income for the vear ended December 31, 2001
and $36.0 million were considered non-
operating. The operating related expenses
consisted of $30.2 million in employee sever-
ance and benefit costs and $92.8 million in
asset impairment losses. The nonoperating
expenses consisted of $36.0 million related to
the write-downs of certain e-commerce

and emerging technology investments. The
planned workforce reduction of approximately
925 people related to the exiting of certain
business activities, product lines and publishing




programs to be discontinued or curtailed, and
other efforts to improve the effectiveness of
the organization. Through December 31, 2002,
all the employees under this restructuring
program have been terminated and all of the
employee severance and benefit costs were
paid. The restructuring under this program
was completed as of December 31, 2002.

See Note 5 for additional information on

this restructuring.

Investing Activities: Cash provided by investing
activities was $137.8 million in 2008, compared
to cash used by investing activities of $366.5 bil-
lion in 2002. The decrease in cash used by
investing activities is primarily due to the
proceeds received from the disposition of
ComStock and the 45% equity interest in
Rock-McGraw, Inc., in 2003. Prepublication
spending declined due to the timing of
adoption cycles.

Purchases of property and equipment
totaled $115.0 million in 2003 compared with
$70.0 million in 2002. The increase in spend-
ing in 2003 relates primarily to the facilities
consolidation at Canary Wharf in London. For
2004, capital expenditures are expected to be
approximately $140 million.

Additions to technology projects totaled
$28.1 million in 2003 compared with $55.5 mil-
lion in 2002. The decrease is primarily from
investments in infrastructure for the McGraw-
Hill Education segment in 2002. For 2004,
additions to deferred technology projects are
expected to be approximately $50 million.

Net prepublication costs decreased to
$463.6 million at December 31, 2003. Prepub-
lication investment totaled $218.0 million in
2003, $31.3 million less than 2002, reflecting
the lighter adoption opportunities in 2004.
Prepublication spending for 2004 is expected
to increase to approximately $290 million as
the Company begins to ramp up spending to
reflect the significant adoption opportunities
in key states in 2005 and beyond.

In 2002, cash used by investing activities was
$366.5 billion, a decrease of $389.1 million
from 2001. The decrease in cash used by
investing activities is primarily due to a
decrease in acquisitions activities.

Financing Activities: Cash used for financing
activities was $896.9 million in 2003 compared
to §781.7 million in 2002. The increase in cash
used by financing activities is principally due
to repayments of short-term borrowings in
2003 and increased treasury stock repurchases.
Cash used for financing activities reflected net
payments of $552.7 million on debt. Cash was
also utilized to repurchase approximately

3.5 million shares for $216.4 million in 2003.
Shares repurchased under the repurchase pro-
gram were used for general corporate purposes
including the issuance of shares for stock com-
pensation plans.

Cash used for financing activities of $781.7 mil-
lion in 2002 reflected an increase of $490.4 mil-
lion over 2001, as cash was used to repay debt,
repurchase approximately 2.9 million shares for
$183.1 million and pay dividends totaling
$197.0 million.

Outstanding Debt and

Other Financing Arrangements

At December 31, 2003, commercial paper
borrowings were $21.5 million, a decrease of
$551.6 million from December 31, 2002. In
2003, all commercial paper borrowings are
classified as current liabilities on the consoli-
dated balance sheet. The Company’s $675 mil-
lion, 364-day revolving credit facility
agreement, entered into on July 23, 2002,
expired on July 22, 2003. On July 22, 2003, the
Company replaced this credit facility with a
new 364-day, $575 million credit facility that
allows it to borrow until July 20, 2004, on
which date the facility agreement terminates
and the maturity of such borrowings may not
be later than July 20, 2005. The Company con-
tinues to pay a facility fee of five basis points
on the 364-day facility whether or not amounts
have been borrowed and borrowings may be
made at 15 basis points above the prevailing
LIBOR rates. The commercial paper borrow-

" ings are also supported by a $625 million,

five-year revolving credit facility, which expires
on August 15, 2005, The Company pays a facil-
ity fee of seven basis points on the five-year
credit facility whether or not amounts have
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been borrowed, and borrowings may be made
at 13 basis points above the prevailing LIBOR
rates. All of the facilities contain certain
covenants, and the only financial covenant
requires that the Company not exceed indebt-
edness to cash flow ratio, as defined, of 4 to 1
at any time. This restriction has never been
exceeded. At December 31, 2003, there were
no borrowings under any of the facilities.

The Company also has the capacity to issue
Extendible Commercial Notes (ECNs) of
$240 million. ECNs replicate commercial paper,
except that the Company has an option to
extend the note beyond its initial redemption
date to a maximum final maturity of 390 days.
However, if exercised, such an extension is at a
higher reset rate, which is at a predetermined
spread over LIBOR,; and is related to the
Company’s commercial paper rating at the
time of extension. As a result of the extension
option, no backup facilities for these bor-
rowings are required. As is the case with com-
mercial paper, ECNs have no financial
covenants. There were no ECNs outstanding at
December 31, 2003 and 2002.

For 2002 and 2001, 80 percent of the com-
mercial paper borrowings outstanding are
classified as long-term. These amounts were
determined based upon the Company’s
detailed financial budgets and cash flow fore-
casts and supports the Company’s ability and
intent to retain this debt level throughout the
next year.

Under a shelf registration that became
effective with the Securities and Exchange
Commission in 1990, an additional $250 mil-
lion of debt securities ¢an be issued. Debt could
be used to replace a portion of the commercial
paper borrowings with long-term securities.

In the third quarter of 2002, the Company
redeemed all of the outstanding shares of
$1.20 convertible preference stock. The
redemption price of $40 per sharé, as prdvided
by the terms of the preference stock, became
payable to holders, who did not otherwise con-
vert their shares into the Company’s common
stock, on September 1, 2002. Most holders
elected conversion prior to redemption.

Dividends

On January 28, 2004, the Board of Directors
approved an increase in the quarterly com-
mon stock dividend of $0.03, or 11.1% to
$6.30 per share.

Share Repurchase Program
In 1999, the Board of Directors approved a
stock repurchase program authorizing the pur-
chase of up to 15 million shares, which was
about 7.5% of the outstanding common stock.
The Company completed the program in
December 2003 after repurchasing 2.3 million
shares for $135.9 million in 2003, for a total of
15 million shares totaling $855.1 million, at an
average price of approximately $57.01 per share.
On January 29, 2003, the Board of Directors
approved a new stock repurchase program
authorizing the purchase of up to 15 million
additional shares, which was approximately
7.8% of the total shares of the Company’s out-
standing common stock. The Company repur-
chased 1.1 million shares for $76.7 million in
2003 at an average price of approximately
$68.26 per share. The repurchased shares may
be used for general corporate purposes, includ-
ing the issuance of shares in connection with the
exercise of employee stock options. Purchases
under this program may be made from time to
time on the open market and in private trans-
actions depending on market conditions.

Contractual Obligations,
Commitments, Guarantees and
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has various contractual obliga-
tions which are recorded as liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements. Other
items, such as certain purchase commitments
and other executory contracts are not recog-
nized as liabilities in the consolidated finan-
cial statements but are required to be
disclosed. For example, the Company is con-
tractually committed to acquire broadcast
programming and make certain minimum
lease payments for the use of property under
operating lease agreements.




The following table summarizes the Company’s significant contractual obligations and commer-
cial commitments at December 31, 2003 in millions of dollars over the next several years. Addi-
tional details regarding these obligations are provided in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, as referenced in the footnotes to the table:

Contractual Cash Obligations

Less than 1-3 4-5 After5 .
(in millions) Total 1 Year Years Years Years
Outstanding Debt! $ 263 § 259 $ - 8 - $ 0.4
Operating Leases? 2,032.4 139.9 247.3 218.3 1,426.9
Pension and Postretirement Obligations® 180.2 27.0 30.4 32.7 90.1
Other Long-Term Obligations 38.4 13.6 17.0 7.8 -
Paper and Other Printing Services? 941.0 209.0 614.0 118.0 -
Broadcasting Programming Commitments3 19.7 11.3 8.2 0.2 -
Employment Contracts® 8.5 5.7 2.7 0.1 -
Unconditional Purchase Obligations? 70.1 36.9 31.2 2.0 -
Total Contractual Cash Obligation $3,316.6 $469.3 $950.8 $379.1 $1,517.4

1 The Company’s long- term debt obligations are described in Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

2 The Company’s operating lease obligations are described in Note 7 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

3 The Company pension and postretirement medical benefit plans are described in Notes 10 and 11 of the Notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements.

4 Included in category paper and other printing services are contracts to purchase paper and printing services. Except for
deposits that may be required pursuant to the contracts, these obligations are not recorded in the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements until contract payment terms take effect. The obligations are subject to change based
on, among other things, the effect of governmental laws and regulations, and the Company’s manufacturing operations
operating outside the normal course of business and paper availability.

5 The Company has various contractual commitments for the purchase of broadcast rights for various television programming.

6 The Company’s commitments under creative talent agreements include obligations to actors, producers, sports person-

nel, executives, and television and radio personalities.

7 A significant portion of the Company’s unconditional purchase obligations represents a revenue commitment for contracts
with AT&T for data and voice transport, AT&T Wireless, MCI, AT&T Optical Network, AT&T MRS and Verizon Wireless.

The Company believes that the amount of
cash and cash equivalents on hand, cash flow
expected from operations and availability
under its credit facilities will be adequate for
the Company to execute its business strategy
and meet anticipated requirements for lease
obligations, capital expenditures, working cap-
ital and debt service for 2004,

Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosure about Market Risk

The Company is exposed to market risk from
changes in interest and foreign exchange rates.
The Company has operations in various for-
eign countries. The functional currency is the
local currency for all locations, except in the

McGraw-Hill Education segment where opera-
tions that are extensions of the parent have the
U.S. dollar as the functional currency. For
hyper inflationary economies, such as
Venezuela, the functional currency is the U.S.
dollar. In the normal course of business, these
operations are exposed to fluctuations in cur-
rency values. The Company does not generally
enter into derivative financial instruments in
the normal course of business, nor are such
instruments used for speculative purposes.
The Company has naturally hedged positions
in most countries with a local currency per-
spective and asset and liability offsets. The gross
amount of the Company’s foreign exchange
positions is $139.5 million as of December 31,
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2003. Management has estimated using an
undiversified value at risk analysis with 90%
certainty that the foreign exchange gains and
losses should not exceed $17.0 million dur-
ing 2004 based on the historical volatilities of
the portfolio.

The Company's interest expense is sensitive
to changes in the general level of U.S. interest
rates. Based on-average debt outstanding over
the past twelve months, the following is the
projected impact on interest expense on cur-
rent operations:

Percent change in Projected impact
interest rates

(+/-)
1% $3.9

on operations

(millions)

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
See Note 1 to the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Statements for disclosure of the
impact that recently issued accounting
standards will have on the Company’s finan-
cial statements.

“Safe Harbor” Statement Under the
Private Securities Litigation

Reform Act of 1985

This section, as well as other portions of this
document, includes certain forward-looking
statements about the Company’s business, new
products, sales, expenses, cash flows, and oper-
ating and capital requirements. Such forward-
looking statements include, but are not limited
to: future paper, printing and distribution
prices; compensation increase rates; pension
plan income; the strength of the U.S. and
global economy; Educational Publishing’s level
of success in 2004 adoptions and enrollment
and demographic trends; the level of educa-
tional funding; the level of education technology

investments; the strength of Higher Education,
Professional and International publishing mar-
kets and the impact of technology on them;
the level of interest rates and the strength of
the economic recovery, profit levels and the
capital markets in the U.S. and abroad with
respect to Standard & Poor’s Credit Market
Services; the level of success of new product
development and global expansion and
strength of domestic and international mar-
kets at Standard & Poor’s Investment Services;
the level of merger and acquisition activity in
the U.S. and abroad, the strength of the domes-
tic and international advertising markets; the
volatility of the energy marketplace; the
strength of the pharmaceutical marketplace;
the contract value of public works, manufac-
turing and single family unit construction; the
strength of the domestic and international
advertising markets; Broadcasting’s level of
advertising; and the level of future cash flow,
debt levels, product related manufacturing
expenses, pension income, capital, technology
and other expenditures and prepublication
cost investment.

Actual results may differ materially from
those in any forward-looking statements
because any such statements involve risks and
uncertainties and are subject to change based
upon various important factors, including, but
not limited to, worldwide economic, financial
and political conditions; currency and foreign
exchange volatility; the health of capital and
equity markets, including future interest rate
changes; the level of funding in the education
market (both domestically and internation-
ally); the pace of recovery of the economy and
in advertising; continued investment by the
construction, computer and aviation industry;
the successful marketing of new products, and
the effect of competitive products and pricing.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

Years ended December 31 (in thousands, except per-share data) 2003 2002 2001
Revenue (Notes 1, 2 and 4)
Product revenue $2,414,563 £2,389,770 $2,%41 ,429
Service revenue 2,413,294 2,250,414 2,133,172
Total Revenue 4,827,857 4,640,184 4,474,601
Expenses (Note 5)
Operating related

Product 1,166,217 1,166,888 1,171,176

Service 840,248 814,423 838,202
Operating Related Expenses 2,006,465 1,981,311 2,009,378
Selling and general

Product 894,862 877,703 869,497

Service 844,881 756,830 764,789
Selling and General Expenses 1,739,743 1,634,533 1,634,286
Depreciation (Note 1) 82,827 86,818 85,748
Amortization of intangibles (Note 13) 32,973 36,270 32,527
Goodwill amortization (Note 13) - - 51,581
Total Expenses 3,862,008 3,738,932 3,813,520
Other income — net (Notes 2 and 14) 171,525 18,660 10,110
Income From Operations 1,137,374 919,912 671,191
Interest expense 7,097 22,517 55,070
Income From Continuing Operations
Before Taxes on Income 1,130,277 897,395 616,121
Provision for taxes on income (Note 6) 442,466 325,429 238,436
Income From Continuing Operations 687,811 571,966 377,685

Discontinued Operations (Note 2):
Earnings from operations of discontinued components:

ComStock (including gain on disposal of $86,953 in 2003) 87,490 8,827 8,853
Income tax expense 30,304 3,310 3,408
Earnings from discontinued operations 57,186 5,517 5,445
Juvenile retail publishing business
(including loss on planned 2004 disposition of $75,919) (81,058) (1,157) (9,916)
Income tax benefit (23,711) (434) (8,817)
Loss From Discontinued Operations (57,347) (723) (6,099)
(Loss) /Earnings From Discontinued Operations (161) 4,794 (654)
Net Income $687,650 $576,760 $377,031

Basic Earnings Per Common Share (Note 12)

Income from continuing operations $ 361 $§ 297 § 195
Net income $ 361 $ 299 $ 1.95
Diluted Earnings Per Common Share (Note 12)

Income from continuing operations $ 358 § 294 $ 193
Net income $ 358 $§ 296 $ 192

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

December 31 (in thousands, except per-share data) 2003 2002
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and equivalents (Note 1) $ 695,591 § 58,186
Accounts receivable (net of allowances for doubtful accounts and

sales returns: 2003 — $239,824; 2002 — $241,061) (Note 1) 956,439 991,806
Inventories:
Finished goods 273,097 314,420
Work-in-process 12,944 18,128
Paper and other materials 15,146 28,209
Total inventories (Note 1) 301,187 360,757
Deferred income taxes (Note 6) 226,068 169,829
Prepaid and other current assets (Note 1) 76,867 98,729
Total current assets 2,256,152 1,674,307
Prepublication Costs: (net of accumulated amortization:

2003 - $1,037,142; 2002 — $924,867) (Note 1) 463,635 534,835
Investments and Other Assets
Investments in Rock-McGraw, Inc. — at equity (Notes 1 and 14) - 119,442
Prepaid pension expense (Note 10) 288,244 261,243
Other 215,732 205,243
Total investments and other assets 503,976 585,928
Property and Equipment — At Cost
Land 13,658 13,252
Buildings and leasehold improvements 379,779 330,484
Equipment and furniture 737,989 728,217
Total property and equipment 1,131,426 1,071,953
Less — accumulated depreciation 664,098 640,493
Net property and equipment 467,328 431,460
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (Notes 1 and 13)
Goodwill - net 1,239,877 1,294,831
Copyrights — net 244,869 272,243
Other intangible assets — net 218,231 238,578
Net goodwill and other intangible assets 1,702,977 1,805,652
Total Assets $5,394,068 $5,032,182

See accompanying notes.




2003 2002

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity

Current Liabilities

Notes payable (Note 3) $ 25955 § 119,414
Accounts payable 306,157 303,354
Accrued royalties 121,047 119,821
Accrued compensation and contributions to retirement plans 352,061 317,640
Income taxes currently payable 246,943 82,016
Unearned revenue (Note 1) 595,418 538,961
Deferred gain on sale leaseback (Note 14) 7,516 -
Other current liabilities (Note 1) 338,637 294,085
Total current liabilities 1,993,734 1,775,291
Other Liabilities

Long-term debt (Note 3) 389 458,923
Deferred income taxes (Note 6) 200,485 200,114
Accrued postretirement healthcare and other benefits (Note 11) 168,051 172,067
Deferred gain on sale leaseback (Note 14) 204,783 -
Other non-current liabilities 269,575 259,965
Total other liabilities 843,283 1,091,069
Total liabilities 2,837,017 2,866,360

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 7)

Shareholders’ Equity (Notes 8 and 9)
Common stock, $1 par value: authorized - 300,000,000 shares;
issued — 205,854,086 shares in 2003 and 205,853,588 shares in

2002, respectively 205,854 205,853
Additional paid-in capital 86,501 79,410
Retained income 3,153,195 2,672,086
Accumulated other comprehensive income (69,524) (103,965)
Less —~ Common stock in treasury — at cost

(15,457,880 shares in 2003 and 14,021,056 shares in 2002) 801,062 669,499

Unearned compensation on restricted stock 17,913 18,063
Total shareholders’ equity 2,557,051 2,165,822
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $5,394,068 $5,032,182
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31 (in thousands)

2003

2002

2001

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net income

$ 687,6508% 576,760 $ 377,031

Dividend from Rock-McGraw, Inc. 103,500 - -

Restructuring and asset write-downs - - 158,962
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided

by operating activities:

Depreciation 83,953 89,589 88,302

Amortization of goodwill and intangibles 33,739 38,789 91,555

Amortization of prepublication costs 285,487 280,393 240,241

Provision for losses on accounts receivable 29,839 35,024 55,254

Gain on sale of real estate - - (6,925)

Loss on sale of MMS International - 14,534 -

Gain on sale of S&P ComStock (86,953) - -

Loss on planned disposition of juvenile retail

publishing business primarily goodwill impairment 75,919 - -

Gain on sale of Rock-McGraw, Inc. (131,250) - -

Other (12,468) (9,618) (8,347)
Change in assets and liabilities net of effect of

acquisitions and dispositions:

Decrease in accounts receivable and inventory 77,055 61,623 23,308

Decrease in prepaid and other current assets 18,927 7,185 27,023

Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 32,692 4,373 42,202

Increase/ (decrease) in unearned revenue and

other current liabilities 51,451 (56,149)  (42,696)

Increase in interest and income taxes currently payable 169,935 18,475 42,618

Net change in deferred income taxes (50,017) 64,492 7,357

Net change in other assets and liabilities 12,886 18,921 3,196
Cash provided by operating activities 1,382,345 1,142,391 1,099,581
Investing Activities
Investment in prepublication costs (218,049) (249,317) (294,538)
Purchase of property and equipment (114,984) (70,019) (116,895)
Acquisition of businesses and equity interests (3,678) (19,310) (333,234)
Proceeds from disposition of property, equipment and businesses 502,665 24,304 17,876
Additions to technology projects (28,145) (55,477) (28,840)
Other - 3,299 -
Cash provided by/ (used for) investing activities 137,809 (366,520) (755,631)
Financing Activities '
Dividends paid to shareholders (206,543) (197,016) (189,834)
(Payments) /additions to commercial paper and

other short-term debt — net (552,719) (478,501) 12,137
Repayment of long-term debt - - (741)
Repurchase of treasury shares (216,356) (183,111) (176,468)
Exercise of stock options 79,162 77,465 63,017
Other (408) (575) (376)
Cash used for financing activities (896,864) (781,738) (291,365)
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash 14,115 10,518 (2,221)
Net change in cash and equivalents 637,405 4,651 50,364
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 58,186 53,535 3,171
Cash and Equivalents at End of Year $ 695,591 8 58,186% 53,535

See accompanying notes.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY

Less—
Years ended Accumulated Less~ unearned
December 31, other  common compen-
2003, 2002 and 2001 81.20 Additional compre- stock in sation on
(in thousands, preference Common  paid-in Retained hensive treasury restricted
except per-share data)  $10 par $lpar  capital income income at cost stock Total
Balance at

December 31, 2000 $13 $205,839 $44,176 $2,105,145 $(110,358) $470,903 $12,868 $1,761,044
Net income - - - 377,031 - - - 377,031
Other comprehensive

income (Note 1) - - - - (16,502) - - (16,502)
Comprehensive Income 360,529
Dividends :

($.98 per share) - - - (189,834) - ~ - (189,834)
Share repurchase - - - - - 176,468 - (176,468)
Employee stock plans - - 20,407 - - (80,070) 2,444 98,033
Other - - 55 - - (526) - 581
Balance at

December 31, 2001 13 205,839 64,638 2,292,342 (126,860) 566,775 15,312 1,853,885
Net income - - - - 576,760 - - - 576,760
Other comprehensive

income (Note 1) - - - - 22,895 - - 22,895
Comprehensive Income 599,655
Dividends

($1.02 per share) - - - (197,016) - - - {197,016)
Share repurchase - - - - - 183,111 - (183,111
Employee stock plans - - 14,737 - - (80,298) 2,751 92,284
Other (13) 14 35 - - (89) - 125
Balance at

December 31,2002 - 205,853 79,410 2,672,086 (103,965) 669,499 18,063 2,165,822
Net income - - - 687,650 - - - 687,650
Other comprehensive

income (Note 1) - - - - 34,441 - - 34,441
Comprehensive Income 722,091
Dividends i

($1.08 per share) - - - (206,543) - - - (206,543)
Share repurchase - - - - - 230,837 - (230,837)
Employee stock plans - - 7,047 - - (99,176) (150) 106,373
Other - 1 44 2 - (98) - 145

Balance at
December 31, 2003 $ - $205,854 $86,501 $3,153,195 $ (69,524) $801,062 $17,913 $2,557,051

See accompanying notes.
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1. Accounting Policies

Principles of consolidation. The consolidated
financial statements include the accounts of all
subsidiaries and the Company’s share of earn-
ings or losses of joint ventures and affiliated
companies under the equity method of
accounting. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of estimates. The preparation of finan-
cial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires man-
agement to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reported in the finan-
cial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents
include highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less and consist
primarily of money market funds and time
deposits at December 31, 2003 and 2002. Such
investments are stated at cost, which approxi-
mates market value and were $695.9 million
and $41.9 million in 2003 and 2002, respec-
tively. These investments are not subject to sig-
nificant market risk.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the
lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. A
significant estimate in the McGraw-Hill
Education segment is the reserve for inventory
obsolescence. The reserve is based upon man-
agement’s assessment of the marketplace of
products in demand as compared to the num-
ber of units currently on hand. Should the esti-
mate for inventory obsolescence for the
Company vary by one percentage point, it
would have an approximate $4.6 million
impact on operating profit.

Prepublication costs. Prepublication costs,
principally outside preparation costs, are
amortized from the year of publication over
their estimated useful lives, one to five years,
using either an accelerated or the siraight-line
method. The majority of the programs are
amortized using an accelerated methodology.
The Company periodically evaluates the
remaining lives and recoverability of such
costs, which is sometimes dependent upon
program acceptance by state adoption author-
ities, based on expected undiscounted cash

flows. If the annual prepublication amortization
varied by one percentage point, the consoli-
dated amortization expense would have
increased by approximately $3.0 million.

Investment in Rock-McGraw, Inc. Rock-
McGraw owns the Company's headquarters
building in New York City. Rock-McGraw was
owned 45% by the Company and 55% by
Rockefeller Group, Inc. The Company
accounted for this investment under the equity
method of accounting. In December 2003, the
Company sold its 45% equity investment in
Rock-McGraw, Inc. See Note 14,

Accounting for the impairment of long-lived
assets. The Company accounts for impairment
of long-lived assets in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”
SFAS No. 144 establishes a uniform accounting
model for long-lived assets to be disposed of.
The Company evaluates long-lived assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in cir-
cumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of an asset may not be recoverable. Upon such
an occurrence, recoverability of assets to be
held and used is measured by comparing the
carrying amount of an asset to forecasted
undiscounted future net cash flows expected
to be generated by the asset. If the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its estimated
future cash flows, an impairment charge is rec-
ognized by the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of
the asset. For long-lived assets held for sale,
assets are written down to fair value, less cost
to sell. Fair value is determined based on dis-
counted cash flows, appraised valies or man-
agement’s estimates, depending upon the

" nature of the assets. There were no impair-

ments of long-lived assets, as of December 31,
2003, 2002 and 2001, with the exception of the
Landoll, Frank Schaffer and related juvenile
retail publishing businesses (juvenile retail
publishing business), which was adjusted to
fair value less cost to sell as a result of a planned
disposition. See Note 13.




Goodwill and other intangible assets. Goodwill
represents the excess of purchase price and
related costs over the value assigned to the net
tangible and identifiable intangible assets of
businesses acquired. As of December 31, 2003
and 2002, goodwill and other indefinite lived
intangible assets that arose from acquisitions
were $1.3 billion and $1.3 billion, respectively.
On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets.” Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and
other intangible assets with indefinite lives are
not amortized, but instead are tested for
impairment annually, or if certain circum-
stances indicate a possible impairment may
exist, in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS No. 142. The Company evaluates the
recoverability of goodwill and indefinite lived
intangible assets using a two-step impairment
test approach at the reporting unit level. In the
first step the fair value for the reporting unit is
compared to its book value including good-
will. In the case that the fair value of the
reporting unit is less than the book value, a
second step is performed which compares the
implied fair value of the reporting unit’s good-
will to the book value of the goodwill. The fair
value for the goodwill is determined based on
the difference between the fair values of the
reporting units and the net fair values of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of such report-
ing units. If the fair value of the goodwill is less
than the book value, the difference is recog-
nized as an impairment. SFAS No. 142 also
requires that intangible assets with estimable
useful lives be amortized over their respective
estimated useful lives to the estimated residual
values, and reviewed for impairment in accor-
dance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.”
See Note 13.

Beginning in January 2002, the Company
did not amortize goodwill on its books in
accordance with SFAS No. 142. Prior to the
adoption of SFAS No. 142, goodwill was amor-
tized on a straight-line basis over periods of up
to 40 years. The amount of goodwill amortiza-
tion recognized was $0 million, $0 million and
$56.6 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Receivable from/payable to broker-dealers and
dealer banks. A subsidiary of J.J. Kenny Co. acts
as an undisclosed agent in the purchase and
sale of municipal securities for broker-dealers
and dealer banks. The Company had matched
purchase and sale commitments of $109.1 mil-
lion and $238.9 million at December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. Only those transactions
not closed at the settlement date are reflected in
the balance sheet as a component of other cur-
rent assets and liabilities.

Foreign currency translation. The Company
has operations in various foreign countries.
The functional currency is the local currency
for all locations, except in the McGraw-Hill
Education segment where operations that are
extensions of the parent have the U.S. dollar as
functional currency. In the normal course of
business these operations are exposed to fluc-
tuations in currency values. Assets and liabili-
ties are translated using current exchange
rates, except certain accounts of units whose
functional currency is the U.S. dollar, and
translation adjustments are accumulated in a
separate component of shareholders’ equity.
Revenue and expenses are translated at aver-
age monthly exchange rates. Inventory, pre-
publication costs and property and equipment
accounts of units whose functional currency is
the U.S. dollar are translated using historical
exchange rates, and translation adjustments
are charged and credited to income.

Revenue. Revenue is recognized when goods
are shipped to customers or services are ren-
dered. Units whose revenue is principally from
service contracts record revenue as earned.
Revenue relating to agreements that provide
for more than one service is recognized based
upon the relative fair value to the customer of
each service component and as each compo-
nent is earned. If the fair value to the customer
for each service is not objectively determinable,
revenue is recorded as unearned and recog-
nized ratably over the service period. Fair
value is determined for each service compo-
nent through a bifurcation analysis which
relies upon the pricing of similar cash arrange-
ments that are not part of the multi-element
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arrangement. Advertising revenue is recog-
nized when the page is run or the spot is aired.
Subscription income is recognized over the
related subscription period.

Product revenue comprises the revenue
from the McGraw-Hill Education segment and
the circulation revenue from Information and
Media Services, and represents educational
products, primarily books and magazines.
Service revenue represents the revenue of the
Financial Services segment and the remaining
revenue of Information and Media Services,
and represents information-related services
and advertising.

Depreciation. The costs of property and
equipment are depreciated using the straight-
line method based upon the following esti-
mated useful lives: Buildings and leasehold
tmprovements — 15 to 40 years; Equipment and
furniture — three to 10 years.

Advertising expense. The cost of advertis-
ing is expensed as incurred. The Company
incurred $86 million, $92 million and
$107 million in advertising costs in 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

Allowance for doubtful accounts and sales
returns. The accounts receivable reserve
methodology is based on historical analysis
and a review of outstanding balances. The
impact on the operating profit for a 1%
change in the allowance for doubtful accounts
is $12.0 million. A significant estimate in the
McGraw-Hill Education segment, and particu-
larly within the Higher Education, Professional,
and International Group, is the allowance for
sales returns, which is based on the historical
rate of return and current market conditions.
The impact on the operating profit for a 1%
change in the allowance for sales returns is
$10.0 million.

Stock-based compensation. As permitted by
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” the Company measures com-
pensation expense for its stock-based employee
compensation plans using the intrinsic
method prescribed by Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25 (APBO No. 25),
"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.”

As required by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation-Transition and
Disclosure,” an amendment to SFAS No. 123,
the following table illustrates the effect on net
income and earnings per share if the Company
had applied the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based
employee compensation:

Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands except

earnings per share) 2003 2002 2001
Netincome,
as reported $687,650 $576,760 $377,031

Stock-based com-
pensation cost
included in
net income,
net of tax $ 9,182 ¢ 12,984 $ 15,002

Fair value of stock-
based compen-

sation cost, net

of tax $(52,320) %(63,113) $(51,724)
Pro forma

netincome $644,512 $526,631 $340,309
Basic earnings per

common share

As reported $ 361 & 299 8§ 195

Pro forma $ 338 $ 273 $§ 1.76
Diluted earnings

per common share

As reported $ 358 P 296 & 199

Pro forma $ 335 % 271 § 174
Basic weighted

average shares

outstanding 190,492 192,883 193,888
Diluted weighted

average shares

outstanding 192,005 194,573 195,873

Beginning in 1997, participants who exer-
cise an option by tendering previously owned
shares of common stock of the Company may
elect to receive a one-time restoration option
covering the number of shares tendered.
Restoration options are granted at fair market
value of the Company’s common stock on the
date of the grant, have a maximum term equal
to the remainder of the original option term,
and are subject to a six-month vesting period.




Comprehensive income. The following table
is a reconciliation of the Company’s net
income to comprehensive income for the years
ended December 31:

{in thousands) 2003 2002 2001

Net income $687,650 $576,760 $377,031
Other comprehensive :

income:
Foreign currency

translation

adjustments 34,441 22,895 (16,502)
Comprehensive

income $722,091 $599,6556 $360,529

Recent accounting pronouncements. In
January 2003, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued Interpretation
No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities, an Interpretation of Accounting
Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51.” The inter-
pretation introduces a new consolidation
model, the variable interests model, based on
potential variability in gains and losses of the
entity being evaluated for consolidation. It
provides guidance for determining whether an
entity lacks sufficient equity or the entity’s
equity holders lack adequate decision-making
ability. These entities, variable interest entities
(VIEs), are evaluated for consolidation based
on their variable interests. Variable interests
are contractual, ownership or other interests
in an entity that expose their holders to the
risks and rewards of the VIE. Application of
the interpretation is required in financial state-
ments that have interests in structures that are
commonly referred to as special purposes enti-
ties for periods ending after December 15,
2003. For all other types of variable interest
entities the interpretation is required for peri-
ods ending after March 15, 2004. Management
does not believe that this will have a material
impact on the Company’s financial statements.

At its September 9, 2003 meeting, the
Accounting Standards Executive Committee
(AcSEC) voted to approve the Statement of
Position (SOP), “Accounting for Certain Costs
and Activities Related to Property, Plant, and
Equipment.” The SOP would provide guidance

for certain costs and activities relating to prop-
erty, plant, and equipment (PP&E). The pro-
posal addresses which costs related to PP&E
assets should be capitalized as improvements
and which costs should be charged to expense
as repairs and maintenance and uses a project
stage or timeline framework with PP&E assets
accounted for at a component level. Under the
SOP, enterprises would also be required to
select an accounting policy for post-adoption
acquisition of assets that can differ from the
componentization policy for pre-adoption
assets. AcSEC also concluded that companies
be required to disclose meaningful ranges with
respect to PP&E depreciable lives. The final
SOP will require companies to segregate PP&E
depreciable life disclosures into ranges, similar
to the concept used by companies when dis-
closing ranges of outstanding stock option
exercise prices. The final SOP is expected to be
issued in early 2004 and would be applicable
for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2004. Management is currently evaluating the
impact of this pronouncement.

At the January 7, 2004 meeting, the FASB
finalized its discussions of the proposed
Financial Staff Position (FSP) SFAS No. 106a
“Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug,
Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003.”
The proposed FSP was issued for comment in
December 2003 to address the accounting and
disclosure implications that are expected to
arise as a result of the Medicare Prescription
Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of
2003 (the Act), which was enacted on
December 8, 2003. The Act introduces a pre-
scription drug benefit under Medicare
(Medicare Part D) as well as a federal subsidy
to sponsors of retiree healthcare benefit plans
that provide a benefit that is at least actuarially
equivalent to Medicare Part D. The issue is
whether an employer that provides post-
retirement prescription drug coverage (a
plan) should recognize the effects of the Act
on its accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation (APBO) and net postretirement
benefit costs and, if so, when and how those
effects should be accounted for. Specific
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authoritative guidance on the accounting for
the federal subsidy is pending and the guid-
ance, when issued could require the Company
to change previously reported information.
The proposed FSP permits a sponsor of a
postretirement health care plan that provides
a prescription drug benefit to make a one-time
election to defer accounting for the effects of
the Act. The Company has elected to postpone
the election until a final FSP is issued. In
accordance with this FSP, the net periodic
postretirement benefit cost in Note 11 does
not reflect the effects of the Act on the plan.
Management is currently evaluating the
impact of the Act on its financial statements.
Reclassification. Certain prior year amounts
have been reclassified for comparability purposes.

2. Acquisitions and Dispositions
Acquisitions. In 2003, the Company had a
small acquisition and purchase price adjust-
ments from its prior years’ acquisitions,
totaling $3.7 million. In 2002, the Company
acquired seven companies, principally Open
University Press, Reality Based Learning and
Bredex Corporation, for a total of §19.3 mil-
lion. In 2001, the Company acquired eight
companies, principally Financial Times
Energy, Frank Schaffer Publications,
Corporate Value Consulting and Mayfield
Publishing Company, for $333.2 million, net of
cash acquired. All of these acquisitions were
accounted for under the purchase method.
Intangible assets recorded for all current trans-
actions are amortized using the straight-line
method for periods not exceeding 15 years. In
accordance with SFAS No. 142, no goodwill
amortization was recorded in 2003 or 2002.

Noncash Investing Activities. Liabilities
assumed in conjunction with the acquisition
of businesses:

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Fair value of

assets acquired $4.1 $20.9 $369.9
Cash paid (net of

cash acquired) 3.7 19.3 333.2
Liabilities assumed $0.4 $16 § 36.7

Dispositions. In February 2003, the Company
divested S&P ComStock (ComStock), the real-
time market data unit of Standard & Poor’s.
The sale resulted in a $56.8 million after-tax
gain (30 cents per diluted share), $87.0 mil-
lion pre-tax, recorded as a discontinued opera-
tion. ComStock was formerly part of the
Financial Services segment. The sale of
ComStock to Interactive Data Corporation
resulted in $115.0 million in cash, an after-tax
cash flow impact of $78.7 million, and a reduc-
tion in net assets of $28.0 million, which
includes a reduction in net goodwill and intan-
gible assets of $14.3 million. The revenue
recorded from ComStock for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and
2001 was $11.1 million, $65.4 million and
$79.0 million, respectively.

ComStock provides market data to
Institutional Investors, Retail Brokers,
Financial Advisors and other users. The deci-
sion to sell ComStock is consistent with the
Financial Services strategy of leveraging the
strength of its equity and fund research infor-
mation to provide unique data and analysis to
investment managers and investment advisors.
As aresult of this refined strategy, the market
data ComStock provides fell outside the core
capabilities that Financial Services is commit-
ted to growing.

Juvenile retail publishing business: In
January 2004, the Company sold the juvenile
retail publishing business which was part of
the McGraw-Hill Education segment’s School
Education Group. The juvenile retail publishing
business produced consumer-oriented learning
products for sale through educational dealers,
mass merchandisers, bookstores, and
e-commerce. As a result of this planned
disposition, as of December 31, 2003, in accor-
dance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,”
the Company reviewed the carrying value of the
Jjuvenile retail publishing business net assets and
adjusted the net assets to their fair market value
less cost to sell. Accordingly, during the fourth
quarter, the Company recognized impairments
to the cérrying value of these net assets of




approximately $75.9 million ($54.1 million net
of tax), $0.28 per diluted share in 2003.
Approximately $70.1 million of that charge was
a write-off of goodwill and intangibles.

As a result of the Company’s planned dis-
position of the juvenile retail publishing busi-
ness, the Company reflected the results of
these businesses as discontinued operations
for all periods presented. The disposition and
results of operations for the period resulted in
a loss of $81.1 million, $57.3 million after-tax,
or 30 cents per diluted share.

This business was selected for divestiture as
it no longer fits within the Company’s strategic
plans. The market was considered to have lim-
ited future growth potential, possessed unique
sales channels, had low profit margins and
would have required significant investment to
achieve the limited growth potential.

In 2002, the Company sold MMS
International and recognized a pre-tax loss of
$14.5 million ($2.0 million after-tax benefit or
1 cent per diluted share). The variance between
the pre-tax loss and the after-tax benefit is the
result of previous book write-downs and the
inability of the Company to take a tax benefit
for the write-downs until the unit was sold. In
2001, the Company sold DRI and recognized a
pre-tax gain of $8.8 million ($26.3 million
after-tax, or 13 cents per diluted share). The
difference between the pre-tax gain on the sale
of DRI of $8.8 million and the after-tax benefit
of $26.3 million is the result of previous book
write-downs and the inability of the Company
to take a tax benefit for the write-downs until
the unit was sold.

3. Debt and Other Commitments
At December 31, 2003, the Company had total
borrowings of $26.3 million, primarily repre-
senting domestic cornmercial paper borrow-
ings of $21.5 million maturing during 2004.
The Company has two revolving credit facil-
ity agreements, consisting of a $625 million,
five-year revolving credit facility (Five-year
Facility) and a $575 million, 364-day revolving
credit facility. The Company’s $675 million,
364-day revolving facility agreement, entered
into on July 23, 2002, expired on July 22, 2003.

On July 22, 2003, the Company replaced this
credit facility with a new 364-day, $575 million
credit facility that allows it to borrow until

July 20, 2004, on which date the facility agree-
ment terminates and the maturity of such bor-
rowings may not be later than July 20, 2005.
The Company continues to pay a facility fee of
five basis points on the 364-day facility whether
or not amounts have been borrowed and bor-
rowings may be made at 15 basis points above
the prevailing LIBOR rates. The commercial
paper borrowings are also supported by a

$625 million, five year revolving credit facility,
which expires August 15, 2005. The Company
pays a facility fee of seven basis points on the
five-year credit facility whether or not amounts
have been borrowed, and borrowings may be
made at 13 basis points above the prevailing
LIBOR rates. All of the facilities contain cer-
tain covenants, and the only financial covenant
requires that the Company not exceed indebt-
edness to cash flow ratio, as defined, of 4 to 1
at any time. This restriction has never been
exceeded. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, there
were no borrowings under any of the facilities.

The Company also has the capacity to issue
Extendible Commercial Notes (ECNs) of up to
$240 million. ECNs replicate commercial
paper, except that the Company has an option
to extend the note beyond its initial redemp-
tion date to a maximum final maturity of
390 days. However, if exercised, such an exten-
sion is at a higher reset rate, which is at a pre-
determined spread over LIBOR, and is related
to the Company’s commercial paper rating at
the time of extension. As a result of the exten-
sion option, no backup facilities for these bor-
rowings are required. As is the case with
commercial paper, ECNs have no financial
covenants. There were no ECNs outstanding at
December 31, 2003 and 2002.

For 2002, eighty percent of the commercial
paper borrowings outstanding were classified
as long-term. This amount was determined
based upon the Company’s detailed financial
budgets and cash flow forecasts and supports
the Company’s ability and intent to retain this
debt level throughout the next year.
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Under a shelf registration that became effec-
tive with the Securities and Exchange
Commission in 1990, an additional $250 mil-
lion of debt securities can be issued.

A summary of long-term debt at
December 31 follows:

(in millions) 2003 2002

Commercial paper supported
by bank revolving credit

agreement $ - $4585
Other (primarily acquisition

related notes) 04 0.4
Total long-term debt $0.4 $4589

The Company paid interest on its debt total-
ing $6.1 million in 2003, $22.2 million in 2002
and $61.5 million in 2001.

The carrying amount of the Company’s
commercial paper borrowings approximates
fair value. )

As of December 31, 2003 the Company’s
unconditional purchase obligation payments
for each of the years 2004 through 2007 and
thereafter are approximately $36.9 million,
$28.8 million, $2.4 million, $1.7 million and
$0.3 million, respectively.

4. Segment Reporting and

Geographic Iinformation

The Company has three reportable segments:
McGraw-Hill Education, Financial Services
and Information and Media Services. The
McGraw-Hill Education segment is one of the
premier global educational publishers and is
the largest U.S.-owned educational publisher
serving the elementary and high school (el-
hi), college and university, professional, and
international markets. The segment comprises
two operating groups: the School Education
Group, and the Higher Education,
Professional, and International Group. In
January 2004, the Company divested Landoll,
Frank Schaffer and related juvenile retail pub-
lishing businesses, which were part of the
McGraw-Hill Education segment. As a result of
the planned disposition as of December 31,
2003, in accordance with SFAS No. 144, the

Company reflected the results of these busi-
nesses as discontinued operations. See Note 2.

The Financial Services segment operates
under the Standard & Poor’s brand as one
reporting unit and provides credit ratings,
evaluation services, and analyses globaily on
corporations, financial institutions, securitized
and project financings, and local, state and
sovereign governments. Financial Services pro-
vides a wide range of analytical and data serv-
ices for investment managers and investment
advisors globally. The Financial Service seg-
ment is also a leading provider of valuation
and consulting services. In February 2003, the
Company divested S&P ComStock, which was
formerly part of the Financial Services seg-
ment. S&P ComStock is reflected as a discon-
tinued operation on the face of the income
statement. See Note 2.

The Information and Media Services segment
comprises two operating groups, which include
business and professional media offering
information, insight and analysis: the Business-
to-Business Group (comprising the Brands
BusinessWeek, McGraw-Hill Construction, Platts,
Aviation Week and Healthcare Information) and
the Broadcasting Group.

Information as to the operations of the
three segments of the Company is set forth
below based on the nature of the products and
services offered. The Executive Committee,
comprising the Company’s principal corporate
executives, is the Company’s chief operating
decision maker and evaluates performance
based primarily on operating profit. The
accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as those described in the sum-
mary of significant accounting policies — refer
to Note 1 for the Company’s significant
accounting policies.

The operating profit adjustments listed
below relate to the operating results of the
corporate entity, which is not considered an
operating segment, and includes all corporate
(income) expenses of $(38.2) million,
$91.9 million and $93.1 million, respectively,
for 2003, 2002 and 2001, and interest expense
of $7.1 million, $22.5 million, and $55.1 mil-
lion, respectively, of the Company. Included in
corporate income for 2003 is the gain from




sale of Rock-McGraw, Inc. of $131.3 million,
See Note 14. Corporate assets consist princi-
pally of cash and equivalents, investment in
Rock-McGraw, Inc., prepaid pension expense,
deferred income taxes and leasehold improve-
ments related to subleased areas.

Foreign operating profit from continuing
businesses was $219.1 million, $188.5 million,
and $111.4 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Foreign revenue, operating profit

36 countries. The Company does not have
operations in any foreign country that repre-
sents more than 5% of its consolidated rev-
enue. Transfers between geographic areas are
recorded at agreed upon prices and intercom-
pany revenue and profit are eliminated.

All income statement categories have been
restated to exclude the results of discontinued
operations. Segment information for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001 was

and long-lived assets include operations in as follows:
Information

McGraw-Hill ~ Financial and Media Segment Consolidated
(in millions) Education Services Services Totals Adjustments Total
2003
Operating revenue $2,286.2  $1,769.1 $772.6  $4,8279 § - $4,8279
Operating profit 321.8 667.6 109.8 1,099.2 31.1 1,130.3*
Depreciation and amortization? 340.5 34.7 20.1 395.3 3.0 398.3
Assets 2,755.4 873.4 433.1 4,061.9 1,332.2 5,394.1
Capital expenditures? 258.7 57.5 15.1 331.3 1.7 333.0
Technology project additions 14.5 11.7 - 26.2 1.9 28.1
2002
Operating revenue $2275.0 $1,555.7 § 8095 $4,6402 % - $4640.2
Operating profit 333.0 560.8 118.0 1,011.8 (114.4) 897.4%
Depreciation and amortizationt 340.4 32.9 21.8 395.1 5.1 400.2
Assets 3,024.5 819.6 446.5 4,290.6 741.6 5,082.2
Capital expenditures? 281.3 25.3 12.7 319.3 - 319.3
Technology project additions 47.3 24 4.4 54.1 1.4 55.5
2001
Operating revenue $2,230.2  $1,398.3 $ 846.1 $44746 - $4,4746
Operating profit 273.3 425.9 65.0 764.2 (148.1) 616.1*
Depreciation and amortizationt 325.6 51.2 26.3 403.1 3.4 406.5
Assets 3,069.6 847.7 481.2 4,398.5 762.7 5,161.2
Capital expenditures! 354.4 29.1 27.9 4114 - 411.4
Technology project additions 21.4 1.0 53 27.7 1.1 28.8

*Income from continuing operations before taxes on income.
tIncludes amortization of goodwill and intangible assets and prepublication costs. Goodwill amortization of $0 million,

$0 million and $51.6 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001.

tIncludes purchase of property and equipment and investments in prepublication costs,

The following is a schedule of revenue and long-lived assets by geographic location:

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Long-lived Long-lived Long-lived

Revenue assets Revenue assets Revenue assets

United States $3,862.5 $2,591.1 $3,780.2 $2,848.8  $3,679.6  $2,830.5
European region 541.4 74.5 463.8 63.2 427.9 114.0
Rest of world 424.0 71.9 396.2 66.6 367.1 56.3
Total $4,827.9 $2,737.5  $4,640.2 $2,978.6 $4,4746  $3,000.8
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5. Restructuring
In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company
announced a worldwide restructuring pro-
gram that includes the exiting of certain busi-
nesses, product lines and markets in each of'its
operating segments. As part of the restructur-
ing program, the Company is focusing its
resources on those businesses and products
with higher profit margins and improving the
effectiveness of the organization. As a result,
the Company recorded a restructuring and
asset impairment charge of $159.0 million pre-
tax. This charge is comprised of $62.1 million
for McGraw-Hill Education, $43.1 million for
Financtal Services, $34.9 million for Information
and Media Services and $18.9 million for
Corporate. The after-tax charge recorded is
$112.0 million, or 57 cents per diluted share.
$123.0 million of the restructuring expenses
were classified as operating related expenses
on the Consolidated Statement of Income for the
year ended December 31, 2001 and $36.0 mil-
lion were considered non-operating. The operat-
ing related expenses.consisted of $30.2 million
in employee severance and benefit costs and
$92.8 million in asset impairment losses. The
non-operating expenses consisted of $36.0 million
related to the write-downs of certain e-commerce
and emerging technology investments.

The restructuring that was recorded at
December 31, 2001 consisted of the following:

(in millions)

Employee severance and benefit costs $ 30.2
Asset impairment losses 128.8
Total $159.0

Employee severance and benefit costs of
$30.2 million includes a planned workforce
reduction of approximately 925 people related to
the exiting of certain business activities, product
lines and publishing programs to be discontin-
ued or curtailed, and other efforts to improve
the effectiveness of the organization. At
December 31, 2002, all employees have been
terminated under this restructuring and all
employee severance and benefit costs were paid.

Asset impairment losses of $128.8 million
include $36.6 million associated with the exiting

of the McGraw-Hill Education’s business train-
ing coursework operation, $37.2 million attrib-
uted to the disposing of non-strategic
properties in the investment services area in
Financial Services and costs associated with
the disposal, $36.0 million primarily arising
from losses on McGraw-Hill Construction’s
e-commerce investments and emerging tech-
nology investments in the venture fund, and
$19.0 million on the write-off of certain assets.

Changes in the marketplace led to a shift to
online learning solutions which impacted
McGraw-Hill Education’s business training
coursework operations. As a result and as part
of the restructuring, the Company initiated an
exiting of the business training coursework
operations leading to a charge of approxi-
mately $36.6 million. This charge is primarily
comprised of write-offs of prepublication costs
and goodwill associated with the operation.

As a result of the Company’s decision to dis-
pose of the non-strategic properties in the
investment services area, losses of approxi-
mately $37.2 million were recognized which
comprised the complete write-off of certain
investments and the write-down of goodwill
associated with properties to be sold. As part
of the restructuring plan, discussions were ini-
tiated with potential buyers and the write-
down of goodwill was determined based upon
the net realizable values. The remaining carry-
ing values of these assets approximated
$22 million and the disposals were completed
within one vear.

Also reflected in the total asset impairment
losses is $36.0 million primarily arising from
losses on McGraw-Hill Construction’s
e-commerce investments and the emerging
technology investments in the venture fund as
the Company has decided to scale back on
these initiatives. These impairment losses
reflect the permanent write-down of the invest-
ments to fair value that was determined based
upon the earnings capability and expected
cash flow of the related investments.

The $19.0 million is primarily attributed to
the write-off of net assets associated with the
programs and product lines to be discontinued.




At December 31, 2001, the remaining reserve
of approximately $36.5 million was included in
other current liabilities. The restructuring was
completed at December 31, 2002.

6. Taxes on Income

Income from continuing operations before
taxes on income resulted from domestic opera-
tions (including foreign branches) and foreign
subsidiaries’ operations as follows:

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Domestic operations  $1,036.3  $836.0  §582.2
Foreign operations 94.0 61.4 339
Total income

before taxes $1,130.3 $8974  $616.1

A reconciliation of the U.S. statutory tax
rate to the Company's effective tax rate for
financial reporting purposes follows:

2003 2002 2001

U.S. statutory rate 35.0% 350% 35.0%
Goodwill amortization - - 1.4
Effect of state and local

income taxes 3.9 3.9 3.9
Disposition of businesses 2.1 (1.2) (2.1)
Restructuring and

asset impairment - - 2.3
Other — net (1.9) (1.4) (1.8)
Effective tax rate 39.1% 36.3% 38.7%

The provision for taxes on income consists
of the following:

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001

Federal:

Current $343.4  $207.1  $196.9

Deferred (35.1) 47.4 (8.1)
Total federal 308.3 254.5 188.8

Foreign:

Current 27.2 175 15.8

Deferred (0.4) (0.5) (L.1)
Total foreign 26.8 17.0 12.7

State and local:

Current 117.0 36.0 38.6

Deferred (9.6) 17.9 (L.7)
Total state and local 107.4 53.9 36.9

Total provision for taxes $442.5  $3254  $238.4

The principal temporary differences
between the accounting for income and
expenses for financial reporting and income
tax purposes as of December 31 follow:

*

(in millions) 2003 2002
Fixed assets and intangible assets  $224.3  §$197.0
Prepaid pension and

other expenses 199.7 176.0
Unearned revenue 47.4 47.4
Reserves and accruals (306.3) (284.1)
Postretirement and

postemployment benefits (84.5) (86.5)
Deferred gain on sale leaseback (86.0) -
Other - net (20.2) (19.5)
Deferred tax (asset) /liability

- net $ (25.6) $ 303

*2002 reclassified for comparability purposes.

The Company made net income tax payments
totaling $328.4 million in 2003, $246.0 million
in 2002 and $202.4 million in 2001.

The Company has not recorded deferred
income taxes applicable to undistributed earn-
ings of foreign subsidiaries that are indefinitely
reinvested in foreign operations. Undistributed
earnings amounted to approximately $256 mil-
lion at December 31, 2003, excluding amounts
that, if remitted, generally would not result in
any additional U.S. income taxes because of
available foreign tax credits. If the earnings of
such foreign subsidiaries were not indefinitely
reinvested, a deferred tax liability of approxi-
mately $46 million would have been required.

7. Rental Expense and

Lease Obligations

Rental expense for property and equipment
under all operating lease agreements was

as follows:

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Gross rental expense $187.5 $173.2 $1544
Less: sublease revenue 7.1 19.9 29.9
Net rental expense $180.4 $153.3 $1245

The Company is committed under lease
arrangements covering property, computer sys-
tems and office equipment. Certain lease
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arrangements contain escalation clauses cover-
ing increased costs for various defined real
estate taxes and operating services.

Minimum rental commitments, including
rent payments on the sale-leaseback described
in Note 14, under existing non-cancelable
leases with a remaining term of more than one
year, are shown in the following table. The
annual rental commitments for real estate was
reduced by $7 million in 2004 and then by
approximately $4 million a year thereafter
through 2008 for sublease income.

(in millions)

2004 § 139.9
2005 130.0
2006 117.3
2007 109.5
2008 108.8
2009 and beyvond 1,426.9
Total $2,032.4

8. Capital Stock

On January 27, 1999, the Board of Directors
approved a share repurchase program author-
izing the repurchase of up to 15 million shares,
approximately 7.5% of the Company’s out-
standing common stock. The Company com-
pleted the program in December 2003 after
repurchasing 2.3 million shares for $135.9 mil-
lion in 2003, for a total of 15 million shares
totaling $855.1 million at an average price of
approximately $57.01 per share.

On January 29, 2003 the Board of Directors
approved a new stock repurchase program
authorizing the purchase of up to 15 million
additional shares, which was approximately
7.8% of the Company’s outstanding common
stock. The Company repurchased 1.1 million
shares for $76.7 million in 2003 under this
program at an average price of approximately
$68.26 per share.

The repurchased shares will be used for
general corporate purposes, including the
issuance of shares in connection with the exercise

of employee stock options for stock compensa-
tion plans. In the event of a significant invest-
ment opportunity, the Company may slow the
pace of repurchase activity.

The number of common shares reserved for
issuance for employee stock plan awards was
25,520,427 at December 31, 2003 and
28,348,251 at December 31, 2002. Under the
Director Deferred Stock Ownership Plan,
296,840 and 298,812 common shares were
reserved for issuance at December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

In the third quarter 2002, the Company
redeemed all of the outstanding shares of
$1.20 convertible preference stock. The
redemption price of $40 per share, as pro-
vided by the terms of the preference stock,
became payable to holders, who did not other-
wise convert their shares into the Company’s
common stock, on September 1, 2002. Most
holders elected conversion prior to redemp-
tion. None of the convertible preference
shares provided a beneficial conversion feature
at the time they were originally issued.

Two million shares of preferred stock, par
value $1 per share, are authorized; none have
been issued. 600,000 shares have been
reserved for issuance under a Preferred Share
Purchase Rights Plan adopted by the
Company’s Board of Directors on July 29,
1998. Under the 1998 Rights Plan, one Right
for each share of common stock outstanding
was issued to shareholders of record on
August 14, 1998. These Rights will become
exercisable only if a person or group acquires
20% or more of the Company’s common stock
or announces a tender offer that would result
in the ownership of 20% or more of the com-
mon stock, Each Right will then entitle the
holder to buy a 1/400th interest in a share of
Series A preferred stock at an exercise price of
$150. The Rights are redeemable by the
Company’s Board of Directors for one-quarter
cent each prior to a 20% acquisition by a third
party. The 1998 Plan also gives the Board of




Directors the option to exchange one share of
common stock of the Company for each Right
(not owned by the acquirer) after an acquirer
holds 20% but less than 50% of the outstand-
ing shares of common stock. In the event, after
a person or group acquires 20% or more of the
Company’s stock, that the Company is
acquired in a merger or other business combi-
nation transaction of 50% or more of its con-
solidated assets or earnings power are sold,
each Right becomes exercisable for common
stock equivalent to two times the exercise price
of the Right.

In 2003, dividends were paid at the quar-
terly rate of $0.27 per common share. Total
dividends of $0.80 per preference share were
paid in 2002. All dividends on preference
stock are cumulative. Total dividends paid in
2003, 2002 and 2001 were $206.5 million,
$197.0 million and $189.8 million, respectively.

9. Stock Plan Awards

The Company applies the provisions of APBO
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees,” in accounting for its stock-based
awards. Accordingly, no compensation cost has
been recognized for its stock option plans
other than for its restricted stock performance
awards. The Company has three stock option
plans: the 2002, 1993 and 1987 Employee
Stock Incentive Plans.

The Plans provide for the granting of incen-
tive stock options, nonqualified stock options,
stock appreciation rights, restricted stock
awards, deferred stock (applicable to the 1987
Plan only) or other stock-based awards to pur-
chase a total of 47.3 million shares of the
Company’s common stock — 9.2 million shares
under the 1987 Plan, 28.6 million shares
under the 1993 Plan and 9.5 million shares
under the 2002 Plan, as amended.

Stock options, which may not be granted at
a price less than the fair market value of the
Company’s common stock at date of grant, vest

in two years in equal annual installments and
have a maximum term of ten years.

The fair value of each option grant was
estimated on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the
following assumptions for 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively: risk-free average interest
rate of 2.9%, 5.1% and 4.7%; dividend vyield
of 1.8%, 1.6% and 1.7%; volatility of 22%,
99% and 28%: and expected life of five years
for all years.

A summary of the status of the Company’s
stock option plans as of December 31 and
activity during the year follows:

Weighted
average exer-

(in thousands of shares) Shares cise price

Outstanding at

December 31, 2000 12,206  $42.97
Options granted 4,806 60.16
Options exercised (2,093) 36.65
Options cancelled and expired (341)  51.35
Outstanding at

December 31, 2001 14,578  $49.34
Options granted 4,987 67.06
Options exercised (1,703) 39.66
Options cancelled and expired (341) 58.80
Outstanding at

December 31, 2002 17,521  $55.13
Options granted 5,100 56.98
Options exercised (2,027) 45.93
Options cancelled and expired (584) 65.33
Outstanding at

December 31, 2003 20,010  $56.32

AtDecember 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
options for 12,920,000, 10,689,000 and
8,340,000 shares of common stock were
exercisable. The weighted average fair value
of options granted during 2003, 2002 and 2001
was $11.19, $19.87 and $16.76, respectively.
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A summary of information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31,

2003 follows:

(in thousands of shares) Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Range of Weighted average Weighted average Weighted average
exercise prices Shares = remaining term exercise price Shares exercise price
$16.78 w0 $24.97 691 2.12 years $21.03 691 $21.03
$25.41 to $38.06 1,113 4.08 years $36.29 1,113 $36.29
$38.47 10 $57.63 8,089 7.51 years $53.28 3,947 $50.18
$57.72 to $70.41 10,117 7.72 years $63.37 7,169 $62.50
$16.78 to $70.41 20,010 7.24 years $56.32 12,920 $54.26

Under the Director Deferred Stock
Ownership Plan, a total of 296,840 shares of
common stock was reserved as of December 31,
2003, and may be credited to deferred stock
accounts for eligible Directors. In general, the
Plan requires that 50% of eligible Directors’
annual compensation plus dividend equiva-
lents be credited to deferred stock accounts.
Each Director may also elect to defer all or a
portion of the remaining compensation and
have an equivalent number of shares credited
to the deferred stock account. Recipients
under this Plan are not required to provide
consideration to the Company other than ren-
dering service. Shares will be delivered as of
the date a recipient ceases to be a member of
the Board of Directors or within five years
thereafter, if so elected. The Plan will remain
in effect until terminated by the Board of
Directors or until no shares of stock remain
available under the Plan.

Restricted stock performance awards have
been granted under the 2002, 1993 and 1987
Plans. These restricted stock awards will vest
only if the Company achieves certain financial
goals over various vesting periods. Other
restricted stock awards have total vesting peri-
ods of up to three years with vesting beginning
on the first anniversary of the awards.
Recipients are not required to provide consid-
eration to the Company other than rendering
service and have the right to vote the shares
and to receive dividends.

A total of 294,876 restricted shares were
issued at an average market value of $56.42 in
2003, 274,875 shares at an average market
value of $66.73 in 2002 and 264,213 shares at
an average market value of $59.28 in 2001. The
awards are recorded at the market value on the
date of grant. Initially, the total market value of
the shares is treated as unearned compensa-
tion and is charged to expense over the respec-
tive vesting periods. Under APBO No. 25, for
performance incentive shares, adjustments are
also made to expense for changes in market
value and achievement of financial goals.
Restricted stock compensation charged to
expense was $14.6 million for 2003, $20.8 mil-
lion for 2002 and $24.4 million for 2001.
Restricted shares outstanding at the end of the
year were 738,847 in 2003, 710,872 in 2002
and 670,959 in 2001.

10. Retirement Plans

The Company and its subsidiaries have a num-
ber of defined benefit pension plans and
defined contribution plans covering substan-
tially all employees. The Company’s primary
pension plan is a noncontributory plan under
which benefits are based on employee career
employment compensation. The Company
also sponsors voluntary 401 (k) plans under
which the Company may match employee con-
tributions up to certain levels of compensa-
tion as well as profit-sharing plans under
which the Company contributes a percentage
of eligible employees’ compensation to the
employees’ accounts.




For purposes of determining annual pen-
sion cost, prior service costs are being amor-
tized straight-line over the average remaining
service period of employees expected to
receive benefits. For 2003, the assumed return
on plan assets of 8.75% is based on a calculated
marketrelated value of assets, which recog-
nizes changes in market value over five years.
The 2003 return assumption was reduced from
9.5% on January 1, 2003, to reflect lower
expected returns on investments due to
expected long-term market weakness,
Additionally, effective January 1, 2003, the
Company changed its discount rate assump-
tion on its retirement plans to 6.75% from
7.25% utilized in 2002. Effective January 1,
2004, the Company changed its discount rate
assumption on its retirement plans to 6.25%
from 6.75% in 2003. There was no change in
the 2004 expected return on plan asset
assumption. Prior years balances have been
restated to include a non-U.S. plan previously
not consolidated.

A summary of net periodic benefit income
for the Company’s defined benefit plans are
as follows:

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Service cost $35.9 $29.2 $259
Interest cost 50.3 47.1 45.8
Expected return
on assets (96.3) (105.2) (99.5)
Amortization of:
Transition asset 0.2 0.2 0.2
Prior service cost 0.4 1.2 1.1
Actuarial (gain) (3.8) (16.8) (20.1)
Net periodic
benefit (income) $(13.3) $(44.3) $(46.6)
U.S. weighted average
assumptions used to
determine net cost —
January 1:
Discount rate 6%% 7%% 7% %
Compensation
increase factor 5% 5% 3%
Return on assets 8% 9% 9%

The Company also has unfunded supplemen-
tal benefit plans to provide senior management
with supplemental retirement, disability and

death benefits. Certain supplemental retire-
ment benefits are based on final monthly
earnings. Pension cost was approximately
$7.5 million for 2003, $6.4 million for 2002 and
$6.7 million for 2001. The accrued benefit obli-
gation as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 was
$46.1 million and $40.6 million, respectively.
Total retirement plans cost was $68.6 million
for 2003, $33.7 million for 2002 and $23.1 mil-
lion for 2001.
The funded status of the defined benefit
plans as of December 31 follows:

(in millions) 2003 2002

Change in benefit obligation
Net benefit obligation at

beginning of year $737.0  $660.0
Service cost 35.9 29.2
Plan amendments 0.6 11
Interest cost 50.3 47.1
Plan participants’ contributions 1.2 1.1
Actuarial loss 72.0 31.3
Gross benefits paid (40.2) (88.4)
Currency effect 8.5 5.6
Net benefit obligation at
end of year $865.3 $737.0

The accumulated benefit obligation at the
end of 2003 and 2002 was $770.7 million and
$613.8 million, respectively.

(in millions, except percentages) 2003 2002

U.S. weighted average assumptions
used to determine benefit
obligations - December 31:

Discount rate 6%% 6%%
Compensation increase factor 54 5%
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at

beginning of year $ 821.1 §$997.1
Actual return on plan assets 228.2 (149.6)
Employer contributions 11.7 6.3
Plan participants’ contributions 1.2 1.1
Gross benefits paid (40.2) (38.4)
Currency effect 6.3 4.6
Fair value of plan assets at

end of year $1,028.3 $821.1

Benefits paid in the above table include only
those amounts contributed directly to or paid
directly from assets.
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The funded status of the plans, reconciled
to the amount reported on the statement of
financial position follows:

End of year (in millions) 2003 2002
Funded status at end of year $163.0 $84.0
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 119.5 173.6
Unrecognized net

transition obligation - 0.2
Unrecognized prior service costs 2.1 2.0

Net amount recognized $284.6 $259.8

Pension Benefits

End of year (in millions) 2003 2002
Prepaid benefit cost $288.2  $261.2
Accrued benefit cost (3.6) (1.4)
Net amount recognized $284.6 $259.8

The following tables reflect pension plans,
primarily unfunded nonqualified plans and
anon-U.S, plan, with a projected benefit
obligation in excess of the fair value of plan
assets and an accumulated benefit obligation
in excess of the fair value of plan assets for the
years ended in December 31, 2003 and 2002:

Projected benefit
obligation exceeds the

(in millions) fair value of plan assets

Information about the expected cash flows
for the defined benefit plans are as follows:

Employer contributions (in millions)

2004 (expected) $ 128

Expected benefit payments (in millions)

2004 $ 38.0
2005 39.2
2006 40.7
2007 42.3
2008 44.4
2009-2013 $262.0

The above table reflects the total benefits
expected to be paid from the plans or from the
Company’s assets including both the Company’s
share of the benefit cost and the participants’
share of the cost.

The asset allocation for the Company’s
domestic defined benefit plan at the end of
2003 and 2002 and the target allocation for
2004, by asset category are as follows:

Target Percentage of plan
Asset Category Allocation assets at year end
2004 2003 2002

Domestic Equity securities  60% 62% 62%

End of year 2003 2002 International Equity 20 18 16
Projected benefit obligation $173.7  $183.7 Debt securities 20 19 21
Accumulated benefit obligation  $126.6  $148.5 Other - 1 1
Fair value of plan assets Total 100% 100% 100%

$ 750 $ 878

Accumulated benefit
obligation exceeds the

(in millions) fair value of plan assets

End of year 2003 2002
Projected benefit obligation $75.3  $183.7
Accumulated benefit obligation $60.4  $1485

$ - $878

Fair value of plan assets

The defined benefit plan has no investment
in the Company’s common stock.

The investment of assets on behalf of the
Company’s defined benefit plans focuses on
both the opportunity for capital growth and
the reinvestment of income. The growth poten-
tial is primarily from capital appreciation from
stocks and secondarily from the reinvestment
of income from fixed instruments. The mix of
assets is established after careful consideration
of the long-term performances of asset classes
and an analysis of future liabilities. Investments
are selected based on their potential to




enhance returns, preserve capital, and reduce
overall volatility. Holdings are well diversified
within each asset class, which includes U.S.
and foreign stocks, high-quality bonds, annuity
contracts and cash.

The Company has several foreign pension
plans that do not determine the accumulated
benefits or net assets available for benefits as
disclosed above. The amounts involved are not
material and are therefore not included.

Assets of the defined contribution plan con-
sist primarily of index funds, equity funds,
debt instruments and McGraw-Hill common
stock. The U.S. plan held approximately
1.8 million and 1.9 million shares of McGraw-
Hill common stock at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively, with market values of
$124.1 million and $114.7 million, respec-
tively. The plan received dividends on McGraw-
Hill common stock during 2003 and 2002 of
$2.0 million and $1.9 million, respectively.

11. Postretirement Healthcare and
Other Benefits

The Company and some of its domestic sub-
sidiaries provide certain medical, dental and
life insurance benefits for retired employees
and eligible dependents. The medical and den-
tal plans are contributory while the life insur-
ance plan is noncontributory. The Company
currently does not fund any of these plans.

Postretirement benefit cost was $9.5 million
in 2003, $9.1 million in 2002 and $8.0 million
in 2001.

The Company uses a measurement date of
December 31 for its postretirement healthcare
and other benefits. A summary of the compo-
nents of the costin 2003, 2002 and 2001 follows:

Components of net periodic benefit cost

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Service cost $ 2.2 $§ 25 $24
Interest cost 10.8 10.2 9.9
Amortization of:
Prior service cost (3.5) (2.5) (2.5)
Actuarial (gain) - (1.1) (1.8)
Net periodic benefit cost § 9.5 $ 91 £8.0

A summary of the companents of the
unfunded postretirement benefit obligation as
of December 31 follows:

Change in benefit obligation

(in millions) 2003 2002

Net benefit obligation at

beginning of year. $167.2  $142.0
Service cost 2.2 2.5
Interest cost 10.8 10.2
Plan participants’ contributions 2.5 2.0
Plan amendments (10.4) ~
Actuarial loss 16.7 25.4
Gross benefits paid (16.0) (14.9)
Net benefit obligation at

end of year $173.0 $167.2

Weighted average assumption used to determine
benefit obligations, end of year

2003 2002

Discount rate 6.25%  6.75%
Change in plan assets _
(in millions) 2003 2002
Fair value of plan assets at

beginning of year L $ -
Employer contributions 13.5 12.9
Plan participants’ contributions 2.5 2.0
Gross benefits paid (16.0) (14.9)
Fair value of plan assets at

end of year $ - & -

Employer contribution and benefits paid
in the above table include only those amounts
contributed directly to or paid directly to
the plan.

{in millions) 2003 2002

Funded status at end of year

Unrecognized net actuarial
loss (gain) 12.4 (4.2)

Unrecognized prior service costs (7.5) (0.7)

$(168.1) $(172.1)

$(173.0) $(167.2)

Net amount recognized
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Information about the expected cash
flows for the other postretirement benefit
plans follows:

Expected benefit payments (in millions)

2004 $ 142
2005 149
2006 15.5
2007 16.1
2008 16.6
2009-2013 90.1

The above table reflects the total benefits
expected to be paid from the Company’s assets.

The initial weighted average healthcare cost
rates for 2003 and 2002 were 10.00% and
10.25%, respectively. The assumed weighted
average healthcare cost trend rate will
decrease ratably from 10.00% in 2003 to 5.5%
in 2012 and remain at that level thereafter.
The weighted average discount rate used to
measure expense was 6.75% in 2003 and
7.25% in 2002. Assumed healthcare cost
trends have a significant effect on the amounts
reported for the healthcare plans. A one-
percentage point change in assumed health-
care cost trend creates the following effects:

One- One-
Percentage Percentage
Point Point
{in-millions) Inerease  Decrease
Effect on total of service
and interest cost $08 % (0.8)
Effect on postretirement
benefit obligation £13.0 %£(12.1)

12, Earnings Per Share

A reconciliation of the number of shares used
for calculating basic earnings per common
share and diluted earnings per common
share follows:

2003
$687,650 $576,760 $377,031

(in thousands) 2002 2001

Net income

Average number of
common shares
outstanding

Effect of stock options
and other dilutive

190,492 192,888 193,888

1,513 1,685 1,985

securities

Average number of
common shares
outstanding
including effect
of dilutive securities 192,005

194,573 195,873

Restricted performance shares outstanding
at December 31, 2008 of 739,000 were not
included in the computation of diluted earn-
ings per common share because the necessary
vesting conditions have not yet been met.

13. Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Effective as of January 1, 2002, the Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets,” Under SFAS No. 142,
goodwill and other intangible assets with
indefinite lives are no longer amortized but are
reviewed annually or more frequently if
impairment indicators arise. The Company
performed the required transitional impair-
ment review of goodwill as of January 1, 2002,
For each of the reporting units, the estimated
fair value was determined utilizing the
expected present value of the future cash flows
of the units. In all instances, the estimated fair
value of the reporting units exceeded their
book values and therefore no write-down of
goodwill was required.




The following table reflects unaudited pro
forma results of operations of the Company,
giving effect to SFAS No. 142 as if it were
adopted on January 1, 2001:

Twelve Months Ended
December 31, (in thousands,

except earnings per share) 2003 2002 2001

Net income,
as reported $687,650 $576,760 $377,031
Add back: amortiza-
tion expense,

34,831
Pro forma net income $687,650 $576,760 $411,862

net of tax - -

Basic earnings per
common share:

As reported $ 36185 2998 1.9

Pro forma $ 361 % 299% 212
Diluted earnings

per common share:

As reported $ 358% 296 8% 192

Pro forma $ 358¢% 296 % 210

The following table summarizes the activity
in goodwill for the periods indicated:

December 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002

McGraw-Hill Education

Beginning balance $913,624 $853,829

Additions/ (dispositions) (61,283) 15,271
Purchase price allocations - 39,146
Other 6,436 5,378
Total $858,777 $913,624

Financial Services
$288,236 $288,400

Beginning balance

Additions/ (dispositions) (12,327)  (4,979)
Other 11,496 4,815
Total $287,405 $288,236

Information and Media Services

Beginning balance $ 92,971 $ 88,799

Additions/ (dispositions) 875 (1,204)
Other (151) 5,376
Total $ 93,695 § 92,971

The following table summarizes the activity
in goodwill for the periods indicated:

December 31,
(in thousands} 2003 2002
Beginning balance $1,294,831 $1,231,028
Net change from

acquisitions and

dispositions (72,735) 9,088
Purchase price

allocations - 39,146
Other 17,781 15,569

Total $1,239,877 $1,294,831

The following table summarizes net good-
will by segment:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2003 2002
McGraw-Hill Education $ 858,777 § 913,624
Financial Services 287,405 288,236
Information and
Media Services 93,695 92971
Total $1,239,877 $1,294,831

There were no material acquisitions or dis-
positions for the periods indicated both indi-
vidually and in the aggregate, and therefore
pro forma financial information is not
required. Included in the McGraw-Hill
Education segment’s additions/dispositions is
$61.3 million of goodwill impairment associ-
ated with the planned disposition of the juve-
nile retail publishing business. See Note 2.
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The following table summarizes other
intangibles subject to amortization at the
dates indicated:

December 31,

(in thousands) 2003 2002
Copyrights $ 465,031 $ 475,054
Accumulated amortization (220,162) (202,811)
Net copyrights 244,869 272,243
Other intangibles 306,088 308,179
Accumulated amortization (125,922) (107,666)
Net other intangibles 180,166 200,513

Total gross intangible assets ~ $ 771,119  § 783,233
Total accumulated

amortization (346,084) (310,477)

$425,035 §472,756

Total net intangible assets

In 2003 net intangibles have been adjusted
$8.8 million for impairment due to the
planned disposition of the juvenile retail pub-
lishing business.

Intangible assets are being amortized on a
straight-line basis over periods of up to
40 years. Amortization expense for intangibles
totaled $33.7 million, $38.8 million and
$34.9 million for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respec-
tively. The weighted average life of the intangi-
ble assets at December 31, 2003, is 16 years.
The projected amortization expense for intan-
gible assets, assuming no further acquisitions
or dispositions, is approximately $27 million
per year over the next five years.

The following table summarizes other
intangibles not subject to amortization at the
dates indicated:

December 31,
(in thousands) 2003 2002
FCC Licenses $38,065 $38,065

14. Sale-Leaseback Transaction

In December 2003, the Company sold its 45%
equity investment in Rock-McGraw, Inc.
Rock-McGraw, Inc. owns the Company’s head-
quarters building in New York City. The trans-
action which was valued at $450.0 million,
included assumed debt. Proceeds from dispo-
sition were $382.1 million. The sale resulted in
a pre-tax gain of $131.3 million and an after-
tax benefit of $58.4 million, 30 cents per diluted
share in 2003.

The Company will remain an anchor tenant
of what will continue to be known as The
McGraw-Hill Companies building and will con-
tinue to lease space from Rock-McGraw, Inc.,
under an existing lease for approximately
16 years. Currently, the Company leases
approximately 18% of the building space.

The lease is being accounted for as an operat-
ing lease. Pursuant to sale-leaseback accounting
rules, as a result of the Company’s continued
involvement, a gain of approximately
$212.3 million ($126.3 million after-tax) was
deferred and will be amortized over the
remaining lease term as a reduction in rent
expense. The Company’s degree of involvement
was determined to be “more than minor,” since
the present value of future minimum lease pay-
ments under the current lease was greater than
10% of the fair value of the property.

As of December 31, 2003, the minimum
lease payments to be paid for each of the
years 2004 through 2008 and in the aggregate
thereafter are approximately $17.2 million,
$16.9 million, $16.9 million, $17.6 million,
and $18.4 million, respectively, and $218.6 mil-
lion thereafter.




REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

Toe the Shareholders of

The McGraw-Hill Companies, inc.

The financial statements in this report were
prepared by the management of The McGraw-
Hill Companies, Inc., which is responsible for
their integrity and objectivity.

These statements, prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States and including amounts
based on management’s best estimates and
judgments, present fairly The McGraw-Hill
Companies’ financial condition and the results
of the Company’s operations. Other financial
information given in this report is consistent
with these statements. '

The McGraw-Hill Companies’ management
maintains a system of internal accounting con-
trols designed to provide reasonable assurance
that the financial records accurately reflect the
Company’s operations and that the Company’s
assets are protected against loss. Consistent
with the concept of reasonable assurance, the
Company recognizes that the relative costs of
these controls should not exceed the expected
benefits in maintaining these controls. It fur-
ther assures the quality of the financial records
in several ways: a program of internal audits,
the careful selection and training of manage-
ment personnel, maintaining an organizational
structure that provides an appropriate division
of financial responsibilities, and communicat-
ing financial and other relevant policies
throughout the corporation. The financial
statements in this report have been audited by
Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors, in

accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States. The indepen-
dent auditors were retained to express an opin-
ion on the financial statements, which appears
on the next page.

The McGraw-Hill Companies’ Board of
Directors, through its Audit Committee, com-
posed entirely of outside directors, is respon-
sible for reviewing and monitoring the
Company’s financial reporting and accounting
practices. The Audit Committee meets periodi-
cally with management, the Company’s inter-
nal auditors and the independent auditors to
ensure that each group is carrying out its
respective responsibilities. In addition, the
independent auditors have full and free access
to the Audit Committee and meet with it with
no representatives from management present.

/M/ZAA v

Harold McGraw I11
Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

[oboZ | Bueck

Robert J. Bahash
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

79




80

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and
Shareholders of

The McGraw-Hill Companies, inc.

‘We have audited the accompanying consoli-
dated balance sheets of The McGraw-Hill
Companies, Inc. as of December 31, 2003 and
2002, and the related consoclidated statements
of income, shareholders’ equity and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2003. These financial state-
ments are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the finan-
cial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made

by management, as well as evaluating the over-
all financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in
all material respects, the consolidated finan-
cial position of The McGraw-Hill Companies,
Inc. at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2003, in conform-
ity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States.

As discussed in Note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Company adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142 in 2002.

St ¥ MLLP

New York, New York
January 27, 2004




SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)*

{in thousands, except per-share data) (2) ’ First quarter Second quarter Third quarter Fourth quarter Total year
2003
Operating revenue $830,814 $1,172,019 $1,602,667 $1,222,357 $4,827,857
Income from continuing operations

before taxes on income 63,273 226,658 459,206 381,140(b) 1,130,277
Income from continuing operations 39,863 142,795 289,299 215,854(b) 687,811
Earnings/ (loss) from discontinued operations 55,532 (760) 997 (55,930) (161)
Net income ' 95,395 142,035 290,296 159,924(b) 687,650

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share

Income from continuing operations 0.21 0.75 1.52 1.13 3.61
Net income 0.50 0.75 1.52 0.84 3.61
Diluted earnings per share
Income from continuing operations 0.21 0.75 1.51 1.12 3.58
Net income 0.50 0.74 1.51 0.83 3.58
2002
Operating revenue $809,373  $1,149,353  $1,540,200 $1,141,258 $4,640,184
Income from continuing operations
before taxes on income 46,385 214,359 490,784(c) 215,867 897,395
Income from continuing operations 28,991 138,974 274,084(c) 134,917 571,966
Earnings/ (loss) from discontinued operations 211 2,496 2,135 (48) 4,794
Net income 29,202 136,470 276,219(¢) 134,869 576,760

Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share

Income from continuing operations 0.15 0.69 1.42 0.70 2.97
Net income 0.15 0.71 1.43 0.70 2.99
Diluted earnings per share
Income from continuing operations 0.15 0.69 1.41 0.69 2.94
Net income 0.15 0.70 1.42 0.69 2.96
2001
Operating revenue $806,827 $1,104,055 $1,487,456 $1,076,263 $4,474,601
Income from continuing operations
before taxes on income 32,383(d)  173,794(e) 389,139 20,8050 616,121
Income from continuing operations 19,916(d)  119,852(e) 239,320 (1,408)() 377,685
Earnings/ (loss) from discontinued operations 475 145 168 (1,442) (654)
Net income 20,391(d)  119,997(¢) 239,488 (2,845)() 377031
Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share
Income from continuing operations 0.10 0.62 1.23 (0.01) 1.95
Net income ‘ 0.11 0.62 1.24 (0.01) 1.95
Diluted earnings per share
Income from continuing operations 0.10 0.61 1.22 (0.01) 1.93
Net income 0.10 0.61 1.22 (0.01) 1.92

*See page 84 for notes to the Quarterly Financial Information.

High and Low Sales Prices of The McGraw-Hill Companies Common Stock?

2003 2002 2001
First Quarter $62.58-51.74 $69.70-58.88 $64.74-54.09
Second Quarter 66.15-55.46 68.73-56.30 70.87-57.84
Third Quarter 64.51-58.60 65.98-50.71 67.95-50.55
Fourth Quarter 70.00-61.99 66.30-55.51 61.80-48.70
Year ‘ $70.00-51.74 $69.70-50.71 $70.87-48.70

tThe New York Stock Exchange is the principal market on which the Corporation’s shares are traded.
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ELEVEN-YEAR FINANCIAL REVIEW

(in thousands, except per-share data, operating statistics and number of employees, as restated) (a) * 2003

2002

Operating Results by Segment and Income Statistics
Operating Revenue

McGraw-Hill Education

Financial Services

Information and Media Services

$2,286,161 $2,275,019

1,769,093
772,603

1,555,726
809,439

Total Operating Revenue 4,827,857 4,640,184
Operating Profit
McGraw-Hill Education 321,751 332,949
Financial Services 667,697 560,845
Information and Media Services 109,841 118,052
Operating Profit 1,099,189 1,011,846
Share of profit of Macmillan/McGraw-Hill School Publishing Company(k) - -
Unusual charges(i) - -
Gain on exchange of Shepard's/McGraw-Hill (i) - -
General corporate income/ (expense) (b) 38,185  (91,934)
Interest expense (7,097) (22,517)
Income From Continuing Operations Before Taxes On Income(2a.b.c.d.e.f£g.h.j) 1,130,277 897,395
Provision for taxes on income 442,466 325,429
Income From Continuing Operations Before Extraordinary Item and

Cumulative Adjustment 687,811 571,966
Discontinued Operations:
Net earnings/ (Loss) from discontinued operations(a) (161) 4,794
Income Before Extraordinary Item and Cumulative Adjustment 687,650 576,760
Early extinguishment of debt, net of tax(m) - -
Cumulative effect on prior years of changes in accounting(m) - -
Net Income $ 687,650% 576,760
Basic Earnings Per Share
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary item and

cumulative adjustment $ 3.61% 2.97
Discontinued operations - 0.02
Income before extraordinary itern and cumulative adjustment $ 3.61% 2.99
Extraordinary item and cumulative adjustment(m) - -
Net income $ 3.61% 2.99
Diluted Earnings Per Share
Income from continuing operations before extraordinary item and

cumulative adjustment $ 3.58 § 2.94
Discontinued operations - 0.02
Income before extraordinary item and cumulative adjustment $ 3.58 § 2.96
Extraordinary item and cumulative adjustment(m) - -
Net income $ 3.58 8 2.96
Dividends per share of common stock $ 1.08 % 1.02
Operating statistics
Return on average shareholders’ equity 29.6% 29.4%
Income from continuing operations before taxes as a percent of revenue 23.4% 19.3%
Income before extraordinary item and cumulative adjustment as a

percent of operating revenue 14.2% 12.4%
Balance sheet data
Working capital $ 262,418 $ (100,984)
Total assets 5,394,068 5,032,182
Total debt ‘ 26,344 578,337
Shareholders’ equity $2,557,051 $2,165,822
Number of employees 16,068 16,505

*See page 84 for notes to the Eleven-Year Financial Review.




2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993

$2,230,235 $1,979,308 $1,734,922 $1,620,343 $1,573,797 $1,277,895 $1,285,578 $1,162,157 § 667,444
1,398,303 1,205,038 1,163,644 1,037,026 878,259 766,620 705,014 669,718 628,153
846,063 1,007,552 1,030,015 1,015,598 1,035,834 990,924 962,379 896,960 876,098

74,47471,7601 4,191,898 3,928,581 3,672,967 3,487,890 3,035,439 2,902,971 2,728,835 2,171,695

278,339 307,672 273,667 202,076 187,722 151,921 162,604 125,765 49,374
425,911 383,025 358,155 338,655 245,150 241,479 214,707 201,642 186,421
65,003 212921 185,551 139,352 158,879 131,397 130,145 120,482 116,751

764,253 903,618 817,373 680,083 591,751 524,797 507,456 447,889 352,546

- - -~ 928,376
- - - - - (25,000 - ~  (229,800)

- - - - - 418,781 - - -
(93,062) (91,380) (83,280) (80,685) (75,342) (62,073) (63,570) (54,134)  (48,538)
(55,070) (52,841) (42,018) (47,961) (52,542) (47.656) (58,766) (51,746) (36,342)

616,121 759,397 692,080 551,437 463,867 808,799 385,120 342,009 66,242
238,436 292,367 269911 215061 177,610 316,687 158,669 140,908 54,696

377,685 467,030 422,169 336,376 286,257 492,112 226,451 201,101 11,546

(654) 4,386 3,405 2,935 9,449 1,432 360 656 (159)
377,031 471,916 425574 339,311 288,699 493544 296811 201,757 11,387
- - - (8,716) - - - - -

- (68,122) - - - - - - -

$ 7377,031$ 403,794 $ 425,574 $ 330,595 % 283,699 % 493,544 % 226,811 % 201,757 § 11,387

$ 1958  241$  215$ 171 1458  2.48% 114 $ 1.02$  0.06

0.02 0.02 0.01 0.01 - - _
$ 1958 243%  217%¢ 1728  1.46%  248%  1.14%  1.02% 006
- (0.35) - (0.04) - - - - -

$ 1.95 8 2.08 § 217$ 1.68 % 1.46 § 248 % 1.14 % 1.02 % 0.06

$ 1.93 § 2.38 § 213 % 1.69 § 143 $ 2.46 $ 1.14 % 1.02 % 0.06

(0.01) 0.03 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.01 - -
§ 192%  241% 214%  170$  145%  247%  1.14%  102%  0.06
- (0.35) - (0.04) - - - - _

1.92 § 2.06 $ 214 $ 1.66 §
098 % 094 % 0.86 $ 0.78 $ 0.

RUINS

1.45 % 2.47 § 1.14 § 1.02 § 0.06
2% 0.66 $ 0.60 % 058 % 0.57

L0

20.7% 23.5% 26.7% 22.9% 20.8% 41.4% 23.3% 23.4% 1.3%
18.8% 18.1% 17.6% 15.0% 13.3% 26.6% 13.3% 12.5% 3.1%

8.4% 11.5% 10.8% 9.2% 8.3% 16.3% 7.8% 7.4% 0.5%

$ (63,446)$ 20,905% (14,731H% 94,497$ 217912§ 92,6298 157244 § 94,486% 28,463
5,161,191 4,931,444 4,118,111 3,817,336 3,740,569 3,668,381 3,081,846 2,984,745 3,066,750
1,066,524 1,045,377 536,449 527,597 684,425 581,368 628,664 762,805 928,710

$1,853,885 $1,761,044 $1,648,490 $1,508,995 $1,394,384 $1,322,827 § 998,964 § 877,266 § 788,584

17,135 16,761 16,376 15,897 15,690 16,220 15,452 15,339 15,661
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Notes to the Quarterly Financial Information on page 81.

Note: Earnings per share may not crossfoot due to rounding.

(a) Operating revenue, income from continuing operations
before taxes on income, and income from continuing opera-
tions for years 2003, 2002 and 2001 have been restated to
exclude amounts associated with discontinued operations.

In 2003 the Company adopted the Discontinued Operations
presentation, outlined in SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Discontinued
operating components, revenue and operating profit of

S&P ComStock and juvenile retail publishing business his-
torically included in the Financial Services and McGraw-Hill
Education segments, respectively, are restated in discontin-
ued operations. 2003 discontinued operations include
$87.5 million on the divestiture of S&P ComStock

($57.2 million after-tax gain or 30 cents per diluted share),
and an $81.1 milliont loss on the planned disposition of the
juvenile retail publishing business ($57.3 million after-tax loss
or 30 cents per diluted share) which was subsequently sold on
January 30, 2004. Discontinued operations in years 2002 and
2001 reflect net after-tax earnings/ (loss) from the operations
of S&P ComStock and juvenile retail publishing business.

(b) 2003 results include a pre-tax gain on sale of real estate
of $131.3 million ($58.4 million after-tax gain, or 30 cents
per diluted share.)

Notes to the 11-Year Financial Review on page 82.

(c) 2002 resules reflect a pre-tax loss of $14.5 million and an
after-tax benefit of $2.0 million, 1 cent per diluted share on
the sate of MMS International. The variance between the
pre-tax loss on the sale of MMS International and the after:
tax benefit.is-the result.of previous-book.write-downs-and-
the inability of the Company to take a tax benefit for the
write-downs until the unit was sold.

(d) Includes a $6.9 million pre-tax gain, 2 cents per diluted
share, on the sale of a building.

(e) Includes an $8.8 million pre-tax gain ($26.3 million
after-tax gain, 13 cents per diluted share) on the disposition
of DRI, the variance between the pre-tax gain recognized on
the sale of DRI of $8.8 million and the after-tax benefit of
$26.3 million is the result of previous book write-downs and
the inability of the Company to take a tax benefit for the
write-downs until the unit was sold. It also includes a

$22.8 million pre-tax loss ($21.9 million after-tax charge,

11 cents per diluted share) on the closing of Blue List, the
contribution of Rational Investors and the write-down of
selected assets.

(£) Includes a $159 million pre-tax charge ($112.0 million
after tax, 57 cents per diluted share) for the restructuring
and asset write-downs.

(a) All income statement categories presented except for
discontinued operations, have been restated to exclude
amounts associated with discontinued operations. In 2003
the Company adopted the Discontinued Operations presen-
tation, outlined in SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” Discontinued
operating components, revenue and operating profit of S&P
ComStock and juvenile retail publishing business histori-
cally included in the Financial Services and McGraw-Hill
Education segments, respectively, are restated in discontin-
ued operations. 2003 discontinued operations include
$87.5 million on the divestiture of S&P ComStock

($57.2 million after-tax gain or 30 cents per diluted earn-
ings per share), and an $81.1 million loss on the planned
disposition of juvenile retail publishing business ($57.3 mil-
lion after-tax loss or 30 cents per diluted earnings per
share) which was subsequently sold on January 30, 2004.
Discontinued operations in years 2002-2000 reflect net
after-tax earnings/(loss) from the operations of S&P
ComStock and juvenile retail publishing business and
1999-1993 reflect net after-tax earnings/(loss) from the
operations of S&P ComStock.

(b) 2003 income from continning operations includes a pre-
tax gain on sale of real estate of §131.3 million ($58.4 mil-
lion after-tax gain, or 30 cents per diluted earnings per share).

(c) 2002 income from continuing operations before taxes
reflects a $14.5 million pre-tax loss ($2.0 million after-tax
benefit, or 1 cent per diluted share) on the disposition of
MMS International.

(d) 2001 income from continuing operations before taxes
reflects the following items: a $159.0 million pre-tax charge
for restructuring and asset write-down; an $8.8 million
pre-tax gain on the disposition of DRI; a $22.8 million
pre-tax loss on the closing of Blue List, the contribution of
Rational Investors and the write-down of selected assets;
and a $6.9 million pre-tax gain on the sale of a building.

(e) 2000 income from continuing operations before taxes
reflects a $16.6 million gain on the sale of Tower Group.

(f) 1999 income from continuing operations before taxes on
income reflects a $39.7 million gain on the sale of the
Petrochemical publications.

(g) 1998 income from continuing operations before taxes
on income reflects a $26.7 million gain on sale of a build-
ing and a $16.0 million charge at Continuing Education
Center for write-down of assets due to a continuing decline
in enrollments.

(h) 1997 income from continuing operations before taxes
on income reflects a $33.2 million provision for the consoli-
dation of office space in New York City and a $20.4 million
gain on the sale of Datapro Information Services.

(1) 1996 operating profit excludes a net gain on the
exchange of Shepard’s/McGraw-Hill for the Times Mirror
Higher Education group comprising a $418.7 million gain
on the exchange and a $25 million one-time charge for inte-
gration costs.

(i) 1995 income from continuing operations before taxes on
income reflects a $26.8 million provision for best practices
initiatives and a $23.8 million gain on sale of the topical
publishing division of Shepard’s/McGraw-Hill.

(k) Reflects The McGraw-Hill Companies’ share of profit of
Macmillan/McGraw-Hill School Publishing Company
through September 30, 1993.

Macmillan/McGraw-Hill results are consolidated effective
October 1, 1993 in the McGraw-Hill Education segment.

(1) 1993 amount reflects unusual charges in connection
with the acquisition of the additional 50% interest in
Macmillan/McGraw-Hill.

(m) The cumulative adjustment in 2000 reflects the adop-
tion of SAB 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements, The cumulative adjustment in 1992 reflects the
adoption of the provisions of SFAS No. 106, “Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions,” and SFAS No.112, “Employers’ Accounting for
Postemployment Benefits,” The extraordinary item in 1998
relates to costs for the early extinguishment of $155 million
of the Company’s 9.43% Notes during the third quarter.




SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Annual Meeting
The 2004 annual meeting will be held at
11 a.m. on Wednesday, April 28 at the
Corporation’s world headquarters:
1221 Avenue of the Americas
Auditorium, 2nd floor
New York, NY 10020-1095.
The annual meeting will also be Webcast at
www.mcgraw-hill.com.

Stock Exchange Listing

Shares of the Corporation’s common stock are
traded primarily on the New York Stock
Exchange. MHP is the ticker symbol for the
Corporation’s common stock.

Investor Relations Web Site
Go to www.mcgraw-hill.com/
investor_relations to find:
* Dividend and stock split history
* Stock quotes and charts
¢ Investor Fact Book
e Financial reports, including the annual
report, proxy statement and SEC filings
¢ Corporate governance information
* Financial news releases
e Management presentations
¢ Investor e-mail alerts

Investor Kit

Available online or in print, the kit includes
the current annual report, proxy statement,
10-Q, 10-K, current earnings release and
dividend reinvestment and direct stock
purchase program.

Online, go to www.mcgraw-hifl.com/
investor_relations and click on the Digital
Investor Kit.

Requests for printed copies can be
e-mailed to investor_relations@mcgraw-
hill.com or mailed to Investor Relations,

The McGraw-Hill Companies, 1221 Avenue
of the Americas, New York, NY 10020-1095.

You may also call Investor Relations toll-free
- at 866.436.8502, International callers may dial
212.512.2192.

Shareholder Services
InvestorService Direct™ allows
registered shareholders to view and
manage their account online.
Go to www.melloninvestor.com/isd

For shareholder assistance, call Mellon
Investor Services, the Corporation’s transfer
agent, toll-free at 888.201.5538, or write to
Mellon Investor Services, PO Box 3316,
South Hackensack, NJ 07606-1937.

News Media Inquiries
Go to www.mcgraw-hill.com /media to view
the latest Company news and information or
to submit an e-mail inquiry.

You may also call 212.512.2826 or write
to Corporate Affairs, The McGraw-Hill
Companies, 1221 Avenue of the Americas,
New York, NY10020-1095.

Direct Stock Purchase and
'Dividend Reinvestment Plan
This program offers a convenient,
low-cost way to invest in the Corporation’s
common stock. Participants can
purchase and sell shares directly through
the program, make optional cash
investments weekly, reinvest dividends
and send certificates to the transfer
agent for safekeeping.

To order the prospectus and enroll-
ment forms, call the automated request
line at 800.842.7629 or write to
Mellon Investor Services, PO Box 3316,
South Hackensack, NJ 07606-1937.

For specific questions about the
program, call Mellon Investor Services
at 888.2015538.
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Board of Directors

Harold McGraw II(E)
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Chief Executive Officer

The McGraw-Hill Companies

Pedro Aspe(AEF)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Protego

Sir Winfried F. W. Bischoff(A.F)
Chairman

Citigroup Europe

Douglas N. Daft(A.C)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
The Coca-Cola Company

Vartan Gregorian (C.E.N)
President
Carnegie Corporation of New York

Linda Koch Lorimer (C.N)
Vice President and Secretary
Yale University

Robert P. McGraw(F)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Averdale International, LLC

James H. Ross(E.EN)
Deputy Chairman
National Grid Transco

Edward B. Rust, Jr.(A.C)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
State Farm Insurance Companies
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Howard University School of Law

Sidney Taurel(C.E.N)
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer
Eli Lilly and Company

Harold W. McGraw, Jr.
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The McGraw-Hill Companies

(A) Audit Committee

(C) Compensation Committee
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EXECUTIVES

Principal Corporate Executives

Harold McGraw III
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Robert J. Bahash
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

David L. Murphy
Executive Vice President,
Human Resources

Deven Sharma

Executive Vice President,
Global Strategy

Kenneth M. Vittor

Executive Vice President and
General Counsel

Mostafa Mehrabani

Executive Vice President and
Chief Information Officer

Glenn S. Goldberg

Senior Vice President, Corporate Affairs
Assistant to the Chairman and

Chief Executive Officer

Principal Operations Executives

Henry Hirschberg
President
McGraw-Hill Education

Scott C. Marden
President

McGraw-Hill Information and Media Services

Leo C. O’Neill
President
McGraw-Hill Financial Services
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